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COURT RESUMES ON 20 JANUARY 2010   (at 15:05) 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  May i t  p lease the Court .   I  st i l l  appear for 

the respondent.  

COURT:  And I  see Mr Lewis is present.  

MR LEWIS:  M‟Lord ,  I  represent myself .  5 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Thank you, M‟Lord .  We are now at  the 

stage where the appl icat ion for absolut ion was dismissed, so 

we intend to open our case and to cal l  our witnesses.  M‟Lord ,  

just  for purposes of  the record,  I  am now of f ic ia l ly a  senior 

counsel,  a l though I  do not have the appropriate regal ia yet .  10 

COURT:  Yes, I  have not had the opportuni ty to congratulate 

you on that .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Thank you, M‟Lord .   M‟Lord ,  we cal l  

Annel ien Dean as our witness.   M‟Lord ,  the air -condit ioning is 

not  working,  so we have taken the l iberty of  opening the doors.  15 

COURT:  That is  f ine. 

EVIDENCE FOR THE RESPONDENT 

ANNELIEN DEAN:   (d.s.s.)  

EXAMINATION BY MR KAHANOVITZ:   Thank you, Ms Dean.  

Let  us start  of f  wi th a l i t t le  b i t  of  background.  First ,  you are 20 

the edi tor of  the People‟s Post?  - --   I  am. 

 And how long have you occupied  that  posi t ion?  ---   

Since 2004. 

 And how many years have you been with the respondent, 

Media 24?  ---   For 13,  going on 14.  25 
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 Before working on the People‟s Post which newspapers 

did you work for?  ---   The Distr ict  Mai l  in  Somerset West and 

Express Newspaper in Bloemfontein.  

 Are those also what have been cal led community 

newspapers?  ---   Both of  them are.  5 

 Just  te l l  us something about your educat ional 

qual i f icat ions.   ---   I  studied through Unisa and atta ined a BA 

in Communicat ion, sorry,  in Engl ish an d Psychology.    

 Now just  because various al legat ions have been made 

about where you come f rom and how that  would have 10 

inf luenced your conduct we need to deal with some aspects.  

Where were you born?  ---   In Edenvale on the East Rand of  

Johannesburg.  

 Are you f rom Afr ikaans stock?  ---   Bi l ingual.   My father 

is with I ta l ian and German heri tage, my mother French 15 

Huguenot.  Both are bi l ingual and were ra ised as such and so 

were we, Af r ikaans and Engl ish.  

 The suggest ion has been made that  you are a meisie van 

Bloemfontein .   Can we just  deal with that  issue?  At  some 

stage you did end up in Bloemfontein,  correct?  ---   My father 20 

was transferred there in 1989 and I  completed my high school 

educat ion in Bloemfontein.  

 I t  has been al leged that  you are a member of  the 

Nederduitse Gereformeerde Kerk .   Is that  correct?   ---   No, I  

was ra ised and conf i rmed Cathol ic.  25 
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 Now let  us move onto your f i rst  meeting,  you were one of  

the people that  interviewed the appl icant.  Is that  correct?  ---   

Yes,  that is t rue.  

 Who else was present?  And just  for the record te l l  us 

who those, their  names wi l l  come up, who those people are 5 

and what their  posi t ions were at  the newspaper.   ---   Sedrick 

Tal jaard was present,  he was publ isher of  WP Newspapers and 

Warren Charles, our human resou rces of f icer with in the 

newspaper d ivis ion of  Media 24.  

COURT:  Just ,  Tal jaard,  you say he was the publ isher?  ---   10 

Publ isher of  WP Newspapers.  

 What is WT(sic)  Newspapers?  ---   WP Newspapers is the 

publ ishing company of  People‟s Post and three other t i t l es, 

Ci ty Vis ion,  Tygerburger and Bl i tz(?) .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  as I  understand the si tuat ion Media 15 

24 is technical ly the contro l l ing or sole shareholder,  so real ly i t  

is  a d ivis ion.   Is that  correct , Ms Dean?  ---   Ja. 

 I t  is  a d ivis ion of  Media 24.   ---   I t  is  a business uni t  

wi th in Media 24.  

 A business uni t ,  okay.   And what is  the purpose of  that 20 

business uni t?  ---   WP Newspapers has a mandate to publ ish 

community newspapers into specif ical ly def ined communit ies 

on the Cape Peninsula.  

 Can you please expla in to His Lordship the community 

newspaper model?  What is i t  about?   25 
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COURT:  Sorry,  before we get there.  You ment ioned someone 

else was at  the interview.  Mr Tal jaard and?  ---   Warren 

Charles.  

 Warren Charles?  ---   Ja,  he was the human resources  

of f icer with in the newspaper d ivis ion of  Media 24.  5 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Al l  r ight ,  so we were going to deal with the 

community newspaper model.   Just could you expla in to the 

court  what that  model is in broad terms and then we wi l l  deal 

with how i t  appl ied in the Western Cape.  ---   The community 

newspaper model is contrasted against  a mainstream model 10 

and a mainstream publ ishing model targets a broad regional 

audience through dai ly newspaper and weekend newspapers 

with provincia l  and nat ional footpr ints such a s …(intervent ion)   

 Can you just  a lso bear in mind that  His Lordship needs to 

wri te down …(intervent ion)   - --   Okay.  15 

 What you are saying.   I f  you could just  s low down a bi t .    

- --   Al l  r ight .  

 And maybe have a look at  His Lordship‟s pen, i f  you can 

see i t ,  and then that  wi l l  give you some indicat ion just  to how 

fast  to go.  20 

COURT:  So i t  is  contrasted with the mainstream model?  ---   

Yes,  which publishes to a broader audience, a larger 

geographical  footpr int .  So for instance your dai ly mainstream 

newspapers would in the Cape Province include the Cape 

Argus and the Cape Times. Your weekly mainstream t i t les with 25 
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large footpr ints would be the Sunday papers of  Sunday Times, 

City Press,  Rapport ,  Sunday Sun and the community 

newspaper model contrasts with that  in that  i t  serves a more 

segmented landscape, where a broad area is segmented into 

smal ler pockets that  are geographical ly def ined and 5 

communit ies are ident if ied around certa in shared points of  

interests and a degree of  shared ident i ty.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  How does that  …(intervent ion)   - --   With in.  

 Sorry.   ---   The market pr imari ly is a imed at  a l lowing the 

market an opportuni ty to advert ise to a smal ler audience with in 10 

an immediate catchment area as opposed to having to 

advert ise their  products and services to  a broad audience at a 

h igher cost  than they can af ford as a smal ler business owner.  

And so through a community newspaper model you are able to 

service a large market area with in n iche publ icat ions at  a cost 15 

that  is af fordable to a smal ler business owner wh o cannot 

af ford to advert ise in a mainstream newspaper and also does 

not need to reach an audience that  extends as far as the 

province‟s boundaries l ie .  

 So in l ine with that,  i t  has already been said the People‟s 20 

Post has ten separate edi t ion for ten comm unit ies in the Cape 

Peninsula.   I  just  want you to conf i rm, those communit ies are 

edi t ions.  There is a Mitchel l ‟s  Pla in edi t ion,  correct?  ---   Yes.  

 A Retreat  edi t ion.   ---   Yes.  

 A Grassy Park edi t ion.   ---   Yes. 25 
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 A Lansdowne edit ion.   ---   Yes. 

 Athlone divis ion,  sorry,  edi t ion.   ---   Ja. 

 A False Bay edit ion.   ---   Yes.  

 Constant ia/Wynberg edi t ion.   ---   Yes.  

 A Claremont/Rondebosch edit ion.   ---   Ja. 5 

 A Woodstock/Mait land edit ion.   ---   Yes. 

 And an At lant ic Seaboard/City edi t ion.   ---   That is 

correct .  

 Now because of  the –  how does the existence of  those 

edit ions coincide with racia l  and culture factors?  ---   They are 10 

publ ished into communit ies geographical ly def ined at  their 

boundaries and there is a coincidence of  homogeneity with in 

certa in of  the addit ions due to what can be termed South 

Afr ica‟s past  and divis ions that stem f rom the past .  However 

to a large degree the major i ty of  the edi t ions we serve are 15 

publ ished into communit ies that have a mixed prof i le 

demographical ly and cul tural ly and raci a l ly and therefore any 

coincidence between the community geographical ly def ined 

and i ts prof i le  on a racia l  and a cul tural  level  would be due to 

how communit ies were shaped in the past .  20 

 Now the appl icant has put up a version which,  as I  

understand i t ,  essent ia l ly says that  the People‟s Post has a 

demographic prof i le  of  coloured people.  Is that  correct? In 

other words that  is the sole demographic prof i le  and he goes 

on to then bui ld an argument which says that  the content of  the 25 
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newspaper,  the only content which may be publ ished, is 

content which f i ts that  racia l  demographic prof i le .  Is that  thesis 

correct?  ---   I t  is  incorrect .  

 Could you just  e laborate on that  by reference to some of  

the geographic communit ies that  you serve in the Western 5 

Cape?  Are al l  the geographic communit ies that  you serve 

comprised only of  so -cal led coloured people?  ---   We serve a 

far broader mix of  cul tures than just  one pocket and for 

instance with in certa in edi t ions,  and I  can name the False Bay 

edit ion as being representat ive,  i t  is  white and so-cal led 10 

coloured residents.   Constant iaberg/Wynberg,  a l l  races served 

there. The City/At lant ic Seaboard edi t ion,  a l l  races are served 

there.   Claremont/Rondebosch, the same. The Lansdowne 

edit ion,  so there is no t ruth to any assert ion th at  we publ ish 

only into a certa in group.  15 

 I  th ink we have had a picture created in th is court  room 

of  an edi tor ia l  meet ing where a group of  edi tors would s i t  

around and look at  a proposed art icle and ei ther accept i t  or 

re ject  i t  because i t  is  or is not  of  interest  to so-cal led coloured 

people.  Is that  what happens at your edi tor ia l  meet ings?  ---   20 

Our edi tor ia l  p lanning is much broader than that narrow 

mandate and that  does not apply to a l l .   We look 

…(intervent ion)   

 Could you maybe just  expla in to His Lo rdship –  give us 

an example of  a story and how you would choose a story and 25 
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what k ind of  story goes into a community newspaper and what 

does not go into a community newspaper?  ---   I  th ink the 

simplest  would be to look at  the levels of  p lanning as opposed  

to a s ingle story,  where there are three levels of  p lanning that 

are operat ive in how we const i tute any edi t ion in any one 5 

week.  The f i rst  level  of  p lanning is to use content across two 

neighbouring edi t ions.   So for instance …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Wai t ,  wai t .   - --   Okay.  

 First  level ,  yes,  to?  ---   To use content across two 

neighbouring edi t ions.   For example Retreat is a neighbouring 10 

edit ion to Constant ia/Wynberg,  is a neighbouring edi t ion to 

Grassy Park.   So the f i rst level  of  edi tor ia l  p lanning wou ld be 

to cross the content over .   I t  is  rout ine that  news generated 

with in the Retreat  pocket is therefore used in the 

Constant ia/Wynberg edi t ion which neighbours Retreat  and vice 15 

versa and Grassy Park through to Retreat ,  Constant ia/Wynberg 

through to Grassy Park.   So that  is the f i rst  level  aimed at 

avoid ing a pigeonhol ing si tuat ion where your reader with in a 

community receives news only about their  specif ic community. 

On a second level  of  edi tor ia l  p lanning there are matters of  20 

interest  across the ent i re landscape. Those would be for 

instance the shark at tack in Fish Hoek last  week which th is 

week was used as a story not  only in the False Bay edit ion,  but 

across al l  the edi t ions and that  too is a rout ine in our p lanning 

used every week on a broad level .   T he th ird level  is one that 25 
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is  a specia l  at t r ibute of  the People‟s Post model or any simi lar 

model and that  is using content to a specif ic a im.  So for 

instance i f  there has been a f i re that has destroyed a house in 

a poorer community a point  is made to use  that  art ic le then in 

a resourced community,  so that  help can be moved f rom one 5 

part  to another and that  a lso is a part  of  how we plan the 

edi t ions.  

 Let  me just  understand that  example again about the 

f i re?  ---   I f  for instance a house is burned down in Hanover 

Park,  as a concrete example,  and we place that  art ic le only in 10 

our Lansdowne edit ion,  there are fewer opportuni t ies and 

resources that  could be moved through, so we broaden the net 

and we would use that then specif ical ly in a more resourced 

communi ty too so that  help is moved across boundaries.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I  assume you are referr ing to an art ic le 15 

that  i t  would contain a request for assistance?  ---   For 

assistance. Please help the family i f  you can donate.   So that 

would roughly be the three levels that  are al l  operat ional every 

week in our p lanning.   I t  is  the neighbouring crossovers,  the 

broad use stor ies, of  a l l  in terest  to a l l  and then specif ic use 20 

art ic les that  are crossed over and the example of  a family 

needing assistance is but  one of  the m. We would for instance 

run a campaign with a service organisat ion that  in a real 

example would be the Claremont Rotary Club is assist ing Early 

Chi ldhood Development Centres in Lavender Hi l l  and we would 25 
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then place that  art ic le across edi t ions too for a b et ter chance 

of  success.  

 Do you know when the People‟s Post f i rst  h i t  the streets 

in  any form or was that  before your t ime?  ---   I t  was bought by 

Media 24 in 2004 and had before then been run for 10 years by 5 

Joe and Simone Fryl inck ,  who sold i t  to Media 24,  the t i t le ,  and 

i t  was only the False Bay edit ion at  that  t ime.  

 So when Media 24 bought the People‟s Post we were 

already wel l  in to the new South Af r ica?  ---   In 2004. 

COURT:  You say 10 years before that  i t  was run by?  ---   I t  10 

had been establ ished in 1994 by a Fish Hoek couple, Joe and 

Simone Fryl inck,  pr ivate individuals,  who publ ished i t  for 10 

years into the False Bay community,  the single edi t ion False 

Bay People‟s Post.  

 Okay.  15 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Let us then move onto some of  the 

part icular facts pecul iar to the appl icant ‟s case.  Just can you 

conf i rm th is,  the appl icant has already conceded th is,  but  just 

to get  the sequence r ight ,  the appl icant says that at  h is 

interview there was no discussion or ment ion of  the fact  that 20 

he was Jewish.   Is that  co rrect?  ---   There was no discussion 

or ment ion of  the fact  that  he was Jewish.  

 Why did you hire the appl icant at  that  t ime?  What is the 

l ink between his employment and the expansion of  the 

newspaper?  ---   Pr imari ly h is CV spoke of  ski l ls  in layout and 25 
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product ion.  I t  was a key requirement of  ro l l ing out  an 

addit ional four newspapers and we needed the layout help.  His 

CV also spoke of  good experience in journal ism in the arts and 

cul ture f ie ld,  which was something we would certa in ly benef it  

f rom having in  the new rol led out version of  People‟s Post.  5 

 We have already heard a l i t t le  b i t  about h im being sent 

off  for t ra in ing.   Won‟t  you just te l l  the court  br ief ly about that 

and t ie that  then into when you started working on the f i rst 

edit ion of  People‟s Post?  ---   Al l  the new recrui ts were –  they 

had the same appointment ef fect ive date.  Al l  were sent of f  for 10 

the same tra in ing at  the same t ime at  Media 24‟s head of f ice in 

Cape Town.  The tra in ing was on Media 24‟s edi tor ia l  layout 

system. For someone whose CV spoke of  experience in layout 

the t ra in ing would require a t ransfer of  exist ing ski l ls  into a 

new package with new funct ions, but  there were candidates 15 

among the group who had not done layout in any form pr ior to 

the appointment who would have had more gr ound to cover in 

their  learning.  In product ion on the f i rst  edi t ion I  was wel l  

aware of  who had had pr ior layout experience and had just 

been, had to be t ra ined on the specif ic Media 24 package and 20 

in  Mr Lewis‟  instance I  was wel l  aware of  what h is CV spok e 

about on his product ion experience pr ior to h is appointment to 

People‟s Post and I  had an expectat ion of  conceptual mastery, 

i f  not  the technical  tools of  the specif ic programme. I  was 

therefore surpr ised when his f i rst page that  he la id out 25 
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revealed a lack of  the conceptual understanding of  layout as i t  

works spat ia l ly.  

 Can you just  …(intervent ion)   - --   Which elements go 

where.  

 Okay, can you just  pause there so that  we can get the 5 

chronology?  Just te l l  the court  about your premises in Tokai 

and when you moved there and why you moved there?  ---   

Br ief ly,  we went in undercover.  We were launching into an 

opposit ion company‟s terr i tory and …(intervent ion)   

 No, sorry,  you maybe misunderstand my quest ion.  I  am 10 

not interested in that .   I  just  want,  just  gi ve us a date.   ---   

Okay, we moved into our new of f ices on 9 May.  

 All  r ight  and when was the f i rst  edi t ion of  People‟s Post 

scheduled to come out?  ---   23 May.  

COURT:  You moved into the premises.   Where were those 15 

premises?  ---   In Tokai.  

 On 9 May?  ---   9 May.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  So when would Mr Lewis have started 

working on the f i rst  edi t ion of  People‟s Post around about as 

opposed to merely being t ra ined?  ---   When we moved into the 20 

of f ice on 9 May we set  out  according to our l is t  of  what we 

needed to  achieve, so on generat ing copy he would have been 

start ing that  f i rst  week f rom 9 May through the second week of  

gathering and preparing content for the edi t ion.  The actual 

product ion would start  the Saturday,  20 May, on the f i rst 25 
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edi t ion.  So content gathering and preparing art ic les,  gain ing 

photos,  doing interviews, wri t ing the content up happened f rom 

9 May and was guided along by var ious edi tor ia l  meet ings to 

monitor progress,  give assistance, with a deadl ine of  Fr iday,  

19 May and our f i rst  pages were la id out  for the f i rst  edi t ion on 5 

the Saturday,  20 May.  

 So let  us deal with an example of  some of  the f i rst  work 

which you received f rom the appl icant.   Sorry,  my numbering is 

–  i f  you go to the bundle.  

COURT:  Which bundle? 10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I t  would be the appl icant ‟s bundle.  

COURT:  Mr Kahanovitz,  there are two bundles of  documents.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.  

COURT:  And I  th ink …(intervent ion)   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I t  is  respondent ‟s bundle.  15 

COURT :   Sorry,  respondent ‟s bundle.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Page 29.   The art ic le with the heading, 

page with the heading: ‟Histor ical  icons fund museum‟.   Are 

you with me?  ---   Yes,  I  am. 

 Are you with me?  ---   Ja.  20 

 Right .    

COURT:  Sorry,  what page is that?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Page 29. 

COURT:  Page 29.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Of respondent ‟s bundle.   Is that  work that 25 
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was submit ted to you by the appl icant?  ---   Yes,  i t  is .  

 Just  give us a comment on the level  of  ski l l  and abil i ty 

d isplayed?  ---   I t  is  the conceptual s ide of  layout that  is 

evident ly lacking here that  had me concerned and the l i t t le  

etchings on the page were where I  was expla in ing to h im how I 5 

had not understood his set t ing out of  the dif ferent  e lements, 

because conceptual ly the page could not  have been f i l led in 

p lacing the photo there and the art ic le there,  so what i t  said to 

me was technical ly he understood the system of  Media 24 in 

terms of  the tools needed to move elements around a page, 10 

which was the level  of  t ra in ing that anyone would assimi late, 

regardless of  pr ior experience or not .   You would understand 

how to move the e lements.  Pr ior experience though would give 

you the advantage on the conceptual s ide f rom a start ing point 

to understand the spat ia l  gr id of  the page enough that  you 15 

would not  land up with anomal ies to th is severe a degree of  

space that  would need to be f i l led i f  your e lements were not 

posi t ioned correct ly f rom the outset .   And that conceptual 

understanding of  the spat ia l  gr id of  a page is something that 

comes f rom experience and among the cohorts t ra ined on the 20 

new system at  the same t ime there would have been a lack of  

a conceptual understanding to be expected as there were 

people who had not had pr ior experience, but  somebody who 

has done product ion before in a publ ishing envi ronment should 

not  exhib i t  th is type of  shortfa l l ,  but  possib ly one re lated 25 
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merely to the t ransfer of  ski l ls  onto a new package.  

 And did you ra ise th is with the appl icant?  ---   That is 

why there are these l i t t le  markings on the page as I  was 

expla in ing to h im I  had not understood why he had set  the 

photo to that  far side,  lef t  of  th e page and I  d id then ask him, 5 

as I  was puzzled,  what type of  column gr id he had worked at  at  

Independent,  because he had on his CV cla imed to have done 

layout at  Independent,  to just understand if  he understood 

what I  was ta lk ing about,  that  he have the c oncept.   And he 

was unsure,  which again struck me as odd, of  what to say on 10 

that  point .  

 Al l  r ight .  

COURT :   Just ,  sorry,  won‟t  you, you say there are anomal ies 

on th is page.  Understand that  we do not understand.  What 

would the anomal ies be on th is page?  ---   Wel l ,  the advert  is  a  15 

half  page size,  so the page is ef fect ively spl i t  hal f  ways.  I f  you 

look at the top port ion of  the page i t  does not ref lect  that  spl i t  

and that  is where the problem comes in,  that  you wi l l  not  be 

able to f i l l  that  space or that  space and you also cannot use an 

art ic le that  smal l  there,  so your f i rst  entry point  in 20 

understanding the concept spat ia l ly of  the gr id of  the page 

would be to identi fy where are the natural  d ivis ions on th e 

page according to the adverts and to work with th at  as 

opposed to against  that .   That is something that  experience in 

layout gives you that  you understand then f rom the outset .  25 
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 In layman‟s terms i t  is  to avoid b lank.   You have got l i t t le 

boxes here.  ---   Yes. 

 That would be an anomaly?  ---   Yes,  that  would be the 

anomaly.  

 Where you would just  have space that  you could not  f i l l  5 

with something else?  ---   Ja and you have reached a point 

there where you are in a corner through your own layout.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Then let  us deal with the Jimmy Dludlu(?) 

art ic le which he submit ted which is at page 23 .   

COURT:  Sorry,  before that .   This then was -  what day was th is 10 

that  you had this or roughly when did you have th is 

d iscussion?  ---   This was the Monday, the 22 n d .  Our f i rst 

edi t ion was out or due out the next  day,  the Tuesday, and we 

were st i l l  f inal is ing the product ion which is why i t  is  page 3 of  

the newspaper.   I t  would be one of  the later pages that  we 15 

would do on the Monday and that is when I  had the discussion 

when I  saw th is and was puzzled by i t .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:   Right , let  us look then at  an art ic le which 

he submit ted for the f i rst  edi t ion,  page 23, and let us just 

pause there on the issue of  h im wri t ing art ic les.   As I 20 

understood his evidence –  i t  was not consistent,  but  there was 

certa in ly a suggest ion made –  that in some or other way he 

was forced, a l though he had been hired as a layout person, he 

was in some or other way forced to a lso wri te art ic les,  

compel led in some or other way. Just  comment on whether h is 25 
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wr i t ing of  art ic les as opposed to merely  subbing occurred 

under some form of  compulsion.   ---   There were certa in ly no 

suggest ion of  any disagreement f rom his s ide to me around 

wri t ing art ic les in that I  was of ten disturbed f rom my own very 

crucia l  work in preparing for a launch of  that  s ize,  wi th the 5 

many tasks that  go with i t ,  by h is interrupt ing me to d iscuss 

the exci t ing ideas he had for our arts of fer ing with in People‟s 

Post and who he was going to speak to and exact ly the 

direct ion he would be taking the arts and cul tural  content into 

and I  d id give him the t ime to d iscuss that .   I t  was important , 10 

but h is exci tement would –  d id not  give me an indicat ion that 

he was not comfortable with wri t ing content.  I t  a lso would not 

be possib le that  he could not contr ibute to the content of  the 

newspaper in that  our product ion and subbing would only occur 

during the lat ter of  a week, f rom a Fr iday through to a Monday 15 

and then our newspaper would be on street  on a Tuesday and 

there would be no content and no product ion on a Wednesday 

and a Thursday to be engaged in,  so as part  of  the working 

week the content was something that  was expected of  h im and 

one that  he enthusiast ical ly d iscussed with me.  20 

 I  just  want to read you my notes f rom what he said:  

“ I  was not aware that  I  must submit  copy.   I  was forced to  

do so under duress.”  

 Is that  t rue or not?  ---   Again I  can only speak of  the 

exci tement with which he discussed the content 25 
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…(intervent ion)   

 Al l  r ight ,  we have heard.   So I  mean, I  infer f rom what 

you said i t  is  not  t rue.   ---   No, i t  is  not  t rue.  

 He said:  

“ I  became aware because of  the att ract iveness of  5 

Annel ien Dean and the promises of  further contracts that 

I  should wri te art ic les.   I t  was not a problem for me.”  

 Just  on th is att ract iveness issue, did you ever lure him 

into wri t ing through making romant ic overtures towards him?   

---   No.  10 

 Did you ever lure h im into wri t ing by making a promise to 

h im of  a future contract?  ---   No. 

 Before we move on f rom th is period in t ime, d id you ever 

misrepresent to h im at  the interview that Media 24 had been 

cleared by the Truth and Reconci l ia t ion Commission?  ---   No, 15 

I  d id not  ta lk on that  topic at a l l .  

 He also says that ,  somewhat d isparagingly ( indist inct ) ,  

that  you had no experience before being appointed the edi tor 

and his words were:   She was ostensib ly the edi tor.  She had 

no experience.  Just  comment br ief ly on that .   ---   I  had been 20 

editor of  the False Bay edit ion when i t  had been bought.  I  had 

been the act ing edi tor and the news editor of  the Distr ict  Mai l  

prior to People‟s Post.  

COURT:  So when you were at  the False Bay and for how 

long?  ---   False Bay, I  was appointed editor October 2004 and 25 
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cont inued the edi torship through the launch in May 2006 of  the 

new edit ions of  People‟s Post.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  And as you have already said pr ior to that 

you had worked on other newspapers.   ---   Ja. 

 Now did you hire h im, as he cla ims, because you wanted 5 

–  and I  am not exact ly sure what he means by th is,  but he says 

that  you wanted him to help h im fake i t?  ---   No. 

 Right ,  then let  us go back then to the Jimmy Dludlu 

art ic le at  page 23.  Those pen markings …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Sorry,  the Gugu, which –  what is the page number?  10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Page 23 of  the respondent ‟s bundle.   This 

is  an art ic le wri t ten by Mr Lewis and submit ted for inclusion in 

the f i rst edi t ion of  People‟s Post.   You wi l l  recal l ,  M‟Lord ,  he 

said that  the reason i t  was re jected was …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Sorry? 15 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  He said,  h is case is that  the reason th is 

was re jected was because i t  d id not  f i t  in to the model of  racia l 

prof i l ing.  Now those pen markings,  the l ines that  are drawn 

through part  of  that  art ic le,  were they made by you?  ---   Yes.  

 And why did you do that?   ---   That is when I  had 20 

discovered that  those chunks had been taken f rom the internet 

and I  was st i l l  th inking i f  I  excise those f rom the art ic le 

possib ly we could st i l l  run with i t ,  however in crossing those 

out i t  was too great a port ion of  text  for the art ic le to work in 

the space that  had been set  aside for i t .  25 
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 Now how did you f ind out  that  those paragraphs had b een 

l i f ted f rom the internet?  ---   There was a change in the style 

of  wri t ing at  that  point  that  made me suspicious and I  Googled 

a phrase and i t  took me to the page f rom which the content 

was drawn.  5 

 What would your pol icy be on cutt ing and past ing text  

f rom other art ic les that  have appeared on the internet?  ---   I t  

is  unacceptable to publ ish that .  

COURT:  Sorry,  i t  is  unacceptable to publ ish?  ---   To publ ish 

cut  and paste content in the absence of  c lear at t r ibut ion,  that 10 

leaves no doubt in the reader‟s  mind that  i t  is  the work of  

another.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Now Mr Lewis‟  version is that  the or is the 

reason, the real ,  true reason why he did not  want to publ ish 

th is art ic le was that  the art ic le was about a b lack Af r ican man 15 

and therefore i t  d id not  f i t  your  racia l  prof i l ing model of  

publ ishing art ic les for the coloured community.  Is h is thesis 

correct?  ---   No, i t  is  incorrect .  

 When you discussed th is art ic le with h im at  the t ime and 

pointed out your concerns about i t ,  was that  an al legat ion that 20 

he made at  that  t ime?  ---   No. 

 Now …(intervent ion )  

COURT:  Sorry,  before we go –  just the date?  When did the 

discussion take place roughly again on th is?  ---   This was the 

Monday, the 22 n d ,  because I  had gone through th is the Sunday 25 
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n ight  before and i t  was on the morning of  the 22 n d .  

 And would you be f inal is ing art ic les the day before the  

actual  -  the publ icat ion?  ---   No, on the weekend‟s s ide I 

would be reviewing the layout and the content done that 

weekend which is why I  p icked th is up on the Sunday night  a nd 5 

I  had taken i t  of f  the page and put something in i ts p lace and 

informed him the Monday that  I  was not comfortable with 

running i t .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  So when did the f i rst  edi t ion then hi t  the 

streets?  ---   The Tuesday, the 23 r d  of  May 2006. 10 

 Can you please te l l  the court  about the ro le that  edi tor ia l 

and layout and journal ist ic staf f  play in the launch of  the 

People‟s Post?  - --   A cal l  was put out  for volunteers to hand 

out the f reshly pr inted edi t ions as part  of  our splash out into 

the community and our  publ isher at  the t ime, Sedrick Tal jaard, 15 

sent through the emai ls cal l ing on volunteers and subsequent 

emai ls conf i rming which volunteers would be at  which handout 

points on the morning of  the 23 r d  when our f i rst  newspapers 

would hi t  the streets and we wou ld wear T-shir ts handing them 

out at  h igh volume traf f ic intersect ions.  20 

 Now i t  is  common cause that  on 23 May the appl icant 

was involved in handing out edi t ions of  the People‟s Post at 

approximately s ix o ‟c lock in the morning in Grassy Park.   Just 

can you expla in what was going on there?  ---   He and myself  

were assigned to the same team and we both handed out 25 
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newspaper at  that  intersect ion.  

 Did that  in any way al ter h is or your working hours?  ---   

I t  was a once-of f  and we had volunteered for i t  and ther e was 

a good spir i t  around i t  and no -one had actual ly ra ised 

object ion in volunteering.   That would be contradictory.  5 

 The appl icant c la ims that  he was forced to work seven 

day weeks. Is that  t rue or fa lse?  ---   False. 

 The appl icant c la ims that  he was re quired to d istr ibute 

newspapers every Tuesday morning f rom 5:00 a.m. to 7:00 

a.m.  Is that  t rue or fa lse?  ---   False. 10 

 M‟Lord ,  the reference is f rom the pleadings at  page 4 and 

5 f rom the statement of  c la im.  

COURT:  ( Indist inct -speaking sof t ly) .   Ja,  but  in h is evidence 

he said that  was in fact  6:00,  6:00 to 7:30 and that he was 

required to be at -  ja,  that  is the pleading that  I  th ink he did 15 

suggest at  the t ime …(intervent ion)   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Wel l ,  le t  me rephrase the quest ion.   Was 

the appl icant required to d istr ibute newspapers in general  at 

any,  apart  f rom outside of  the launch, as volunteering,  was 

part  of  h is job funct ion the distr ibut ion of  newspapers?  ---   20 

No. 

 Who distr ibutes newspapers for People‟s Post?  - --   On 

The Dot Distr ibutors with in Media 24 and we pay them to do 

that .  

 Now the appl icant has test i f ied that af ter he came to the 25 
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conclusion that  you had re jected –  sorry,  just  before we go 

onto the art ic le could you just  ident ify the document at  page 24 

of  the respondent ‟s bundle and who made those markings and 

why they were made?  ---   On the music.org.za pr intout  the 

exclamat ion mark was made by myself  across the page where 5 

i t  was the same paragraphs he had carr ied over into the art ic le 

he submitted for publ icat ion.  

 So that  is the art ic le that  was used for cut t ing and 

past ing?  ---   Yes. 

 Right ,  then let  us deal with the Robbie Jansen art ic le.  10 

You wi l l  recal l  the appl icant ‟s evidence was that  he decided 

that  th is –  he would rework the art ic le so that  i t  would f i t  your 

racia l  prof i l ing model  and the subject  matter of  the art ic le 

would now be a wel l -known so-cal led coloured saxophonist .   

The art ic le that  was submitted is at page 37 of  respondent ‟s 15 

bundle.   Is that  correct?  ---   Yes,  i t  is .  

 And once again can we just  get  a date there?  ---   This 

would be for the second edit ion on the 30 t h  of  May that  i t  was 

submitted.  

COURT:  What day would that  be?  ---   I t  –  wel l ,  I  reviewed i t  20 

the Monday, the 29 t h  of  May and discussed i t  that  same day 

with David and i t  was for the Tuesday, the 30 t h  of May‟s  

edi t ion,  the second edit ion of  our new expanded model.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Now what were your concerns about that 

art ic le?  ---   Af ter the page layout ra ised concerns and the f i rst 25 
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draf t  of  th is art ic le the previous week, both had ra ised 

concerns with me abou t  Mr Lewis‟  work.   When I  read in the 

art ic le that  Robbie Jansen was comment ing negat ively on al l  

and sundry with in the industry that  g ives him a l iving and also 

the phrase that af ter some encouragement and despite 5 

warnings by his  producer not  to ta lk to t he press, Jansen 

commented and cont inues then to cr i t ic ise al l  and sundry.   I  

was weary of  the standard of  Mr Lewis‟  work and I  chose to not 

publ ish th is unt i l  I  had ver i f ied,  responsib ly ver i f ied that  such 

an interview had indeed taken place with Mr Janse n. 10 

 Did some of  the …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Sorry,  again,  just  to –  I  am just  –  I  d id not  get 

everyth ing down.  So you said that you were concerned that 

Robbie Jansen was comment ing on an industry in which he 

earns his l iving.   And then you said there wer e two other 15 

statements in the art ic le that worr ied you.  ---   I  was f i rst ly 

concerned that  he was cr i t ic is ing through our newspaper, 

which was very new, the very industry that  has …(intervent ion)

 Yes,  I  have got that .   ---   … supported him. And the 

specif ic statement that  sealed my suspic ion and made me very 20 

uneasy was on page 39 towards the bottom with the sect ion 

that  starts:   I t  is  unfortunate I  d id not  get  the award.   Mr Lewis 

had wri t ten:  Af ter some encouragement and despite warnings 

by his producer no t  to ta lk to the press Jansen commented on 

Dludlu‟s pr ize feat .   That made me concerned that  Jansen‟s 25 
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producer had even encouraged him not to ta lk to the press,  yet  

af ter Mr Lewis‟  encouragement he had thought otherwise and 

then conf ided to Mr Lewis a l l  h is misgivings about the industry.  

I  fe l t  I  needed to be assured that  that  indeed had happened 

before I  commit ted th is to pr int  in the name of  People‟s Post.  5 

MR KAHANOVITZ:   Let  us just  br ief ly quote some of  the 

th ings that are at tr ibuted to Mr Jansen, page 38 in the bottom 

of  the page, „however‟ ,  last  paragraph.  

“Speaking f rom his Cape home local  goema king Robbie 

Jansen.”  10 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  There is an error on the machine.  

COURT:  There is an error on the machine?  

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Yes, I  am going to have to pause.  

COURT:  Okay.  

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  ( Indist inct -not  speaking into 15 

microphone).  

COURT:  Ja,  I  th ink so.   There is a problem with the machine.  

I  th ink i t  might be just  opportune then to just  take the short 

adjournment now.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Thank you, M‟Lord .   What t ime should we 20 

reserve?  I t  is  f ive to 10 now.  

COURT:  I  assume as soon as the machine is –  at  least  15 

minutes. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  ( Indist inct) .  

COURT:  At  least  15 minutes,  but  unt i l  the machine is f ixed.  25 
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MR KAHANOVITZ:  Al l  r ight ,  thanks,  M‟Lord .  

COURT ADJOURNS   (at 15:58) 

COURT RESUMES   (at 15:04) 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Excuse me, M‟Lord .  I t  seems the wi tness is 

st i l l  in  the passage.  5 

ANNELIEN DEAN:   (s.u.o.)  

COURT:  Ms Dean, you are st i l l  under oath.  

EXAMINATION BY MR KAHANOVITZ (CONTINUED):    Ms 

Dean, we were at  page 38 of  the bundle and we were looking 

at  …(intervent ion)   10 

COURT :   The respondent ‟s bundle?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  The respondent ‟s bundle and we were 

looking at  examples,  controversia l  aspect of  the art ic le 

submitted by Mr Lewis about J immy Dludlu/Robbie Jansen.  

Just  let  us start  wi th the heading though.  The heading is 15 

„Robbie comment on Dludlu ‟s SAMA success‟ ,  correct?  - --   

Yes.  

 Right ,  then you turn to page 38 down the bottom. I  am 

just  going to read i t  in to the record and  you just  conf i rm that i t  

is  there.  20 

“However,  speaking f rom his Cape home local  goema.”  

 Spelt  G-O-E-M-A. 

“King Robbie Jansen cr i t ic ised the industry celebrat ion: 

„To me the SAMA awards remind me of  the SARIE awards 

of  the Apartheid era.   Sê maar so awards.   I  wish there25 
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was award for n ice players,  thoughtful  and conscient ious,  

people who play with feel ing,  for people with compassion, 

another type of  award,  not  a popular ity award. ‟ ”  

 Was that wri t ten in the art ic le?  ---   Yes,  i t  is .  

 And on the fo l lowing page i t  is  wri t ten that  Jansen had 5 

t ravel led to Johannesburg,  th is is about the eighth or ninth l ine 

f rom the top,  for the ceremony and then he is quoted as saying 

the fo l lowing:  

“ I  went up there.   Everybody is pretending to be 

somebody else.  I  d id not  see any art ists,  just  a whole lot 10 

of  pretenders.  A dif ferent  t r ibe,  I  guess.   I t  is  not  who you 

are,  but  who are you wearing.”  

 Is that  in the art ic le?  ---   Yes,  i t  is .  

 Then down the paragraph .  Further open quotes:  

“ I t  is  unfortunate that  I  d id not  get  the award.  I f  I  d id I  15 

would.”  

 Does i t  say have gotten i t?  ---   One can assume that is 

…(intervent ion)   

 I t  seems to.  

“ ‟Cheap words I  guess.  The pr ize money would have been 20 

well ‟ .  Af ter some encouragement and despite warnings by 

his producer not  to ta lk to the press Jansen commented 

on Dludlu ‟s pr ize feat :   „We have a lot of  George 

Bensons. I  am not saying Dludlu is George Benson, but  

you know what I  mean ‟ . ”  25 
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 Was that in the art ic le?  ---   Yes,  i t  is .  

 So you cal led the appl icant into your of f ice and what did 

you say to h im?  ---   I  said to h im I  was not wi l l ing to run the 

art ic le without ver i fying that  i ts contents were not t rue and that 

I  would need a number for Robbie Jansen to ver i fy the 5 

contents.  

 What was his response?  ---   He started shout ing and 

using profani t ies,  was highly agi tated and lef t  the of f ice in a 

storm af ter shout ing profani t ies declar ing that  he would not 

wri te another word for the newspaper thereaf ter.  10 

 Well ,  maybe you should just  ment ion some of  the exact 

profani t ies that  he used.  ---   He said he would not  wri te  

another ef f ing word for th is ef f ing newspaper again.  

 Did he give you Jansen‟s number?  - --   He then went to 

h is desk and later in the day the,  he said that  he could put  me 15 

in contact  with h is pastor,  but  that  he could not  give me  

Robbie Jansen‟s number.  

 Whose pastor?  ---   With Robbie Jansen‟s pastor.  

 What d id you do af ter th is interact ion?  Did you leave i t  

matters lying there or d id you take i t  further?  ---   I  phoned our 20 

publ isher,  Sedrick Tal jaard,  and informed him th is had just 

occurred and that  –  required his advice and he then said that 

we would need to meet the next  day with our human resources 

of f icer and Sedrick h imself  present to deal with the matter.  

 Right ,  so let  us then move –  we know there was a 25 
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meet ing on the next  day,  i t  is  30 May. Tel l  us what happened 

at  that  meet ing?  ---   I t  was in my of f ice and i t  started of f  wi th 

us quest ioning Mr Lewis‟  background and experience as 

presented in h is CV to us as we had some concerns around 

what he cla imed he was able to do.  Then we move onto the 5 

point  of  what had happened the previous day and the 

inappropriateness with in the workplace.  There was a point  at 

the meet ing though that  …(intervent ion)   

 Sorry,  the inappropriateness of what?  ---   The 

inappropriateness of  using profani ty at  your manager in the 10 

of f ice and refusing to work f rom there.  

 Al l  r ight ,  what was his response?  ---   There was a point 

in the meet ing that  i t  became chaot ic and th ings dissolved.  

Structure was lost  and in general  what I  recal l ,  i f  not specif ic 

words,  was the emot ional ly charged atmosphere stemming 15 

f rom Mr Lewis being qui te agi tated,  def in i te ly not  handl ing the 

meet ing appropriate ly in the professional context .  

 And he himself  has admit ted that  he used profane 

language at  the meet ing.   How did i t  end?  ---   I t  ended in 

agreement  by al l  part ies that  a fu l l  and f inal  sett lement be 20 

signed. Mr Lewis would be paid out  the balance of  h is 

contractual  per iod and that  he would not  be required to be at 

the of f ice in the last  month of  h is contractual  per iod.  

 Was that  agreement  s igned?  Well ,  le t  us put  on the 

record,  M‟Lord ,  we do not have a –  we are not  re lying on i t .   25 
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We do not have that  agreement ,  so. 

COURT:  So let  me hear f rom the witness.   Was there an 

agreement?  ---   Yes,  there was an agreement  that  was signed.  

 Was i t  in  wri t ing?  ---   I t  was in wri t ing and i t  was signed 

in my of f ice that  day before Mr Lewis departed the premises.  5 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Mr Lewis …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Let  me just  get  th is r ight .   But there is no –  you no 

longer have a copy of  that agreement?  ---   I t  has been 

misla id.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Did you hear Mr Warren Charles making 10 

offensive remarks about David Lewis ‟  re l ig ion in that  meet ing? 

 - --   I  d id not  hear ( indist inct -microphone of f ) .  As I  said there 

was a lot  of  chaos at  one  point  and I saw th ings,  but  there was 

( indist inct -microphone of f )  and I don‟t  recal l  in  detai l  in  words 

that  was said by everybody.  15 

 Do Mr Charles and Mr Tal jaard st i l l  work for the 

respondent?  ---   No, both are no longer in employment with 

Media 24. 

 Now the appl icant has test i f ied that –  I  understand that 

he was physical ly removed f rom the premises.  Just  te l l  us what 20 

your version is  about what happened?  ---   He was 

accompanied by Messrs Tal jaard and Charles to h is desk  and 

they walked out with h im. He was not physical ly removed.  

 In the sense –  so he was not l i f ted up and carr ied out of  

the bui ld ing?  ---   He was not l i f ted,  no,  not  at  a l l .  25 
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 Do you recal l  anything being ment ioned about Qiblah?   

---   I  don‟t  recal l  that .  

 Did he contact you, the appl icant contact  you later the 

same day?  ---   He phoned me that  n ight  and said he had some 

wine and that  he wanted to apologise to me and let  me know 5 

that i t  was not because of  me, but  because of  the white 

dominee .   And I  inferred f rom that,  that  he meant Sedrick 

Tal jaard.  And that  he did not  want me to view him poorly.  

 We know f rom the appl icant ‟s version that  he prepared a 

document.   He seemed to be under the impression that he was 10 

coming to present h is v is ion of  how the newspaper should be 

run.   Do you know where he got,  do you have any idea where 

he got that  idea f rom that th is was the purpose of  the meet ing? 

 ---   No, I  don‟t  know.  

COURT :   Didn‟ t  he cal l  i t  an evaluat ion meet ing?  15 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes,  he did.   Was i t  an evaluation –  or 

maybe you are not  the r ight  person to ask as you did not  cal l  

h im to the meet ing?  ---   I  d id not. That was handled by my 

management, Sedrick Tal jaard and Warren Charles.  

 Now the appl icant had ment ioned that  h is working hours 20 

were del iberately set  in order to prevent h im f rom being able to 

observe the Jewish Sabbath.  Is that t rue or fa lse?  ---   That is 

fa lse. 

 The appl icant a l leges that  the –  both the Dludlu and the 

Jansen art ic les is the only real  reason why you refused to run 25 
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wi th them was because they did not  coincide with the racia l 

prof i l ing model of  the People‟s Post.  Is that  t rue or fa lse?  - --   

That is fa lse.  

 We know also that the –  f rom t ime to t ime the appl icant 

a l leges that  he is not  actual ly white,  but  that  he is actual ly a  5 

Coloured.  Just  for purposes of  the reco rd,  according to the old 

c lassi f icat ions,  what category would appl icant fa l l  in to?  ---   

White.  

 Just as a general  suggest ion,  that the People‟s Post 

would never publ ish a story about an Af r ican musician in a 10 

publ icat ion targeted at  non -Afr icans,  is there any basis 

whatsoever to a suggest ion that  that  would be part  of  your 

publ ishing model?  ---   No, there is no basis for that .  

 How many edit ions in tota l  of  the People‟s Post d id the 

appl icant ever worked on?  ---   Two.  15 

 Did you ever give him the impression  af ter he started 

working on People‟s Post that  you were intending to renew his 

contract?  ---   No, I  d id not .  

 I f  someone is on a f ixed term contract  at  what stage in 

the process would you usual ly start  to consider whether or not 20 

to of fer them a new contract?  ---   I t  would most l ikely be 

towards the end of  the second or the last month,  before the 

commencement of the last  month of  that  contract ,  just pr ior to 

that  last  ( indist inct -microphone of f ) .  

 There has also been some suggest ion –  I  do not th ink i t  25 
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is  necessary for i t  to deal with i t  in any detai ls because i t  is 

not  actual ly p leaded by the appl icant,  but  i t  a lso was 

suggested that  People‟s Post d iscr iminates against Is lamic 

culture and the descendants of  s laves.   Is that  t rue or fa lse?   

---   I t  is  fa lse. 5 

 Then there is some suggest ion by the appl icant that  he 

should have been paid more because of  h is struggle 

credent ia ls.  Did he ever ra ise that  with you?  ---   No, he did 

not .  

 I f  I  a lso understand his c la im correct ly he appears to be 10 

suggest ing that  the real  reason why his  contract  was not 

renewed had to do with the progressive use which he holds, 

which were anathema in the context  of  th is react ionary 

newspaper that  serves to perpetuate Apartheid.   Is there any 

t ruth to that  suggest ion?  ---   No truth.  15 

 He also has said that  people who were members of  the  

NGK  were t reated di f ferent ly at  People‟s Post.  Is there any 

t ruth to that?  ---   No truth.  

 I  just  have one quest ion,  i f  I  might have a minute,  

M‟Lord ,  I  am just  looking for a note.  20 

COURT:  Fine.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  When I  was cross-examining about your 

reasons for re ject ing these art ic les,  he conceded that  you said 

to h im that  the art ic les have not met the standard that  were 

required,  but  he went on to say the fo l lowing:  The real reason 25 
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is  a psychological  problem Annel ien Dean has.  And I  asked 

him what was the psychological  problem and he said:  the 

psychological  problem that she has is she has a problem with 

Dludlu‟s skin colour.  We have already been there,  but just  for 

purposes of  the record,  was i t  your psychological  problem with 5 

Dludlu‟s skin colour that  caused you to re ject  the Dludlu 

art ic le?  ---   No. 

 I  have no further quest ions,  M‟Lord .  

COURT:  Mr Lewis? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR LEWIS:   Ms Dean, could you 10 

te l l  us what your school motto was?  ---   I  cannot give you my 

high school motto,  I  don‟t  recal l  i t  and I  th ink my pr imary 

school motto was ( indist inct -microphone of f ) .  I  cannot actual ly 

recal l .  

 Can I perhaps ref resh your memory?  Magna est ver i tas ,  15 

great is the t ruth.   I t  is  the motto of  Brebner … ( intervent ion)    

---   For pr imary or …(intervent ion)   

 Were you at  Brebner?  ---   (No audible answer).  

 For how long were you at  …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Sorry,  at?  ---   Brebner High School.  20 

MR LEWIS:  Brebner High School.  

COURT:  Brenda?  ---   Brebner.  

 Brebner.   ---   Brebner High School.  

MR LEWIS:  Could you te l l  us where Brebner High School  is? 

 ---    I t  is  in the Bloemfontein.25 
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 And how many years were you there?  ---   From 1990 to 

1994. 

 So that  would be four years?  ---   Yes.  

 And you remember a Mr Spears and a Mr Taylor?  - --   5 

Yes.  

 Al l  r ight .  

COURT:  Mr who?  ---   Mr Spears.  

MR LEWIS:  Mr Spears.   ---   Former pr incipal  and Mr Taylor 

was the ( indist inct -microphone of f ) .  10 

 Could you perhaps te l l  us,  the court ,  what was signi f icant 

about the history of  Brebner High School?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord  …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  I t  is  an interest ing …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Ja. 15 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Might I  ask what the re levance of  th is l ine 

of  cross-examinat ion is? 

COURT:  I  am going to a l low him th is quest ion and  then I  am 

going to –  sorry,  the quest ion was? 

MR LEWIS:  There is a s igni f i cant h istor ical  point  that 20 

Brebnerians seem to make and I  was just  wondering whether 

you –  i f  Ms Dean could perhaps help us.   ---   I  can‟ t .  

 (Short  pause).  

COURT:  No, no,  you just  give i t  to the registrar p lease.  

MR LEWIS:  Sorry.    25 
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COURT:  So you are –  you want th is admitted to the record?  

MR LEWIS:  Yes,  I  th ink i t  is  qui te signi f icant,  just  in the l ight 

of  the al legat ions that  have been made.  There is a paragraph 

on the Brebner  High School …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Okay, just  for the record,  th is is going to be,  i t  wi l l  be 5 

–  become page 130.  

MR LEWIS:  Al l  r ight .  

COURT :   Of  the appl icant ‟s bundle of  documents,  f i rst  bundle 

of  documents.  

PAGE OF BREBNER HIGH SCHOOL MARKED PAGE 130  OF 10 

APPLICANT’S FIRST BUNDLE OF DOCUMENTS  

MR LEWIS:  I  th ink the sal ient  point  that  I  am trying to make is 

i t  is  a  l ine here:  

“History shows us that  th is community was also 

controversia l  and had to f ight  for recognit ion and 15 

acceptance in Bloemfontein society.”  

 Is that  not  correct?  ---   I  am not sure.   Could you 

rephrase the question? 

 I t  is  a s igni f icant h istor ical  fact  of  –  Brebnerians would 

know th is.   There was a controversy that  they founded the 20 

school and people at  that  school would not  be adverse t o 

controversy.   ---   Are you asking me …(intervent ion)   

 I  am asking you a quest ion,  yes.   ---   That people at  the 

school would not  be adverse to controversy?    

 Yes,  is that  correct  or not?  ---   Only in as much as i t  25 
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appl ies to any school set t ing.   Why would i t  be a part icular 

s igni f icance to a Brebnerian?   

 Al l  r ight ,  i t  is  just  a quest ion of  …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  you must …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  No, let  us move on.  5 

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  okay,  so you are not  proceeding with th is 

l ine of  quest ioning? 

MR LEWIS:  No, no,  I  just  wanted to ask her that quest ion.  

COURT:  Okay.  

MR LEWIS:  I  am te l l ing you, you graduated in 1994?  ---   Yes,  10 

I  d id.  

 And two years later you jo ined Naspers as a news sub for 

the Express without any qual i f icat ions whatso ever.   ---   I  

jo ined as a junior reporter.  

 Al l  r ight ,  then in …(intervent ion)   15 

COURT:  Was that  in 1990 –  what year d id you jo in as a 

…(intervent ion)    

MR LEWIS:  1996.  As a junior reporter.   ---   1996. 

COURT:  By the way, Mr Lewis,  you have just  go t  to a l low –  

when I  ask a quest ion of  the witness the witness answers,  not 20 

you, a l l  r ight?  Please, just  s low everyth ing down.   Yes,  

proceed. 

MR LEWIS:  Sorry,  Ms Dean.  Is i t  correct  that  in 2000 you 

jo ined the Distr ict  Mai l?  ---   I  jo ined in 1999.  

 ‟99.   Can  we have a look on page 60 of  the pleadings?  25 
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There is a paragraph 27.  There is a quote …(intervent ion)  

COURT:  Let  the witness f ind –  a lso watch the witness 

…(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Al l  r ight .  

COURT:  So that the witness is on the same page as you are  5 

and watch me because I  need to a lso f ind the re levant bundle.  

Page 60 of  the pleadings?  

MR LEWIS:  60 of  the pleadings.  

COURT :   For the record th is is part  of  the respondent ‟s not ice 

of  intent ion to amend.  10 

MR LEWIS:  There is a quote there:  

“This was the appl icant ‟s f i rst  exposure to actual  

product ion of  a newspaper.”  

COURT:  What paragraph number?  

MR LEWIS:  Paragraph 27.  15 

COURT:  Okay.  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, is th is an accurate statement?  ---   The 

reference should be „ the newspaper ‟  as your CV made clear 

that  you had had product ion experience before.  

 Right .   ---   So the reference ( indist inct -microphone of f ).  20 

 Right .  

COURT :   So i t  should be „ the‟  rather than „a ‟ .   - --   The 

reference is inaccurate.  

MR LEWIS:  So your –  sorry,  how many years d id you work at  

the Distr ict  Mai l?  ---   From 1999 unt i l  –  f rom October 1999 25 
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unt i l  October 2004.  I t  would be f ive.  

 Five years?  ---   Yes. 

 And you are of  the opin ion that  th is qual i f ies you to be 

the edi tor of  at least  four t i t les in previously d isadvantaged 

areas?  ---   My company was of  the opin ion.  5 

 Right .   Does pol i t ics p lay a ro le at  a l l  in  the choice that –  

of  edi tor ia l ,  who gets to be edi tor at  a newspaper?  ---   No. 

 Yet you chose to conceal the fact  that you were a 

Cathol ic.   ---   Are you asking me ( indist inct -microphone of f ) 

quest ion? 10 

 Sorry,  d id you conceal the fact  that  you were a Cathol ic? 

 ---   No.  

 Is i t  not  a fact  that  the vast  major i ty of  employees at 

Media 24,  at  least  in the manageria l  capacity,  belong to the 

NG Kerk?  ---   I  cannot comment on that .  15 

 Ms Dean, do you accept that  Apartheid is a heresy and 

that  there is no basis in re l igion for such a bel ief?  ---   Yes,  

personal ly I  do.  

 Personal ly you do, r ight .   Then do you bel ieve God put 

the Af r ikaner on the southern t ip of Af r ica or is colonia l ism to 20 

blame?   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  wi th respect,  th is is not  re levant.  

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  you are asking her,  her personal bel iefs.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  What is the re levance of  that?  25 
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MR LEWIS:  My personal bel iefs have been at tacked by the 

company.  I  had to prove that  I  am a Jew and Ms Dean does 

not have to prove before th is court  that  she is a Catholic.  

COURT:  No, she does not,  but she has already given 

evidence that  she is a Cathol ic and she has been required to 5 

do that  because you said that  she was a  member of  the NG 

Kerk .  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  And you were wrong on that  matter i t  appears.  

MR LEWIS:  Right , but  th is is what she to ld me, so i t  is  a,  i t  is  10 

a,  i t  is  a l l  new to me …(intervent ion)   

COURT :   So wel l  then why don‟t  you ask her what she to ld  you 

rather than use words l ike:  why did  she conceal that  she is a 

Cathol ic.   Just ,  i f  you want to cross -examine you may do that, 

but  let  us just  …(intervent ion)   15 

MR LEWIS:  Wel l ,  then that  is a good quest ion.   Why did you 

te l l  me that  you were a member of  the NG Kerk?  ---   I  d id not 

te l l  you that  at a l l .  

 Your company has an aggriegous his tory.   Why didn‟ t  the 

company make a submission to the TRC?  ---   I  wi l l  not 20 

comment on that .  

 What steps have been taken, i f  any,  to accommodate 

Jews at  Media 24?  ---   I  wi l l  a lso not comment on that.  

 Ms Dean, is i t  not  safe to say Jews may jo in Media 24 as 

long as they behave l ike Christ ians?  ---   I  am uncerta in of  25 
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your quest ion.  

 Is i t  not  safe to say Jews may jo in Media 24 as long as 

they are Christ ians?  ---   I  cannot comment on that .  

 Is working on Friday night  an inherent requirement of  the 

job?  ---   The hours at  any newspaper are long and strenuous 5 

and at  t imes working late on a Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday,  

Thursday, Fr iday,  Saturday,  Sunday is a part  of  the j ob.  

 Then why is there no at tendance register or record of  

hours worked by employees?  ---   We submit  at  a management 

level  overt ime through to payrol l  for payment purposes.  10 

 So that  would be management or edi tor ia l  would be 

submitt ing the overt ime?  ---   Editor ia l .  

 Editor ia l  would submit …(intervent ion)   - --   That is for 

payrol l  purposes.  

 For payrol l  purposes.   ---   For publ ic hol iday and Sunday 15 

work.  

 So you would be making those determinat ions as to what 

was overt ime or not?  ---   ( Indist inct-microphone of f )  and send 

i t  through to payrol l .  

 That is what you would be doing,  a l l  r ight .   Ms Dean, 20 

does your company al low employees to wear nose studs for 

re l igious or cul tural  purposes?  ---   No studs are or have never 

been a problem wi th the company and no -one has ever had to 

just i fy on what grounds they choose to wear that .  

 Can I  ask you a quest ion then –  you do not have to 25 
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answer me –  why does Media 24 presume and even insist  i t  

has the r ight  to d ictate the re l igious and cul tural  af f i l ia t ions of  

i ts employees?  ---   I  choose not to answer.  

 Let  us have a look at  the contract .   Ms Dean, you have 

said in your test imony in the pleadings that  the contract  does 5 

not  ref lect  what was agreed upon, that  the hours,  there was a 

di f ference in the hours of  what ref lecte d in the document f rom 

Monday to Fr iday and what was actual ly agreed upon.  

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  i t  would be probably easier for the witness 

i f  you just  referred to the contract i tsel f .  10 

MR LEWIS:  To the contract,  r ight .   I t  would be in the 

respondent ‟s bundle  of  documents on page 5.  

COURT:  Page? 

MR LEWIS:  Page 5.   Actual ly on page 7 there is a paragraph 

„work ing hours‟ .   Ms Dean, perhaps you can perhaps read that 15 

paragraph. 

COURT:  No, i t  is  not  necessary to read the paragraph.  

MR LEWIS:  Not necessary.  

COURT:  She can just  –  you do not have to read i t  in to the 

record I  mean.  Just  read i t  f i rst  so tha t  you can answer h is 20 

quest ion and now understand what he meant.  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, what was the working hours of  the 

…(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Let  her read i t .   Okay.  ---   ( Indist inct -microphone 

of f ) .  25 
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MR LEWIS:  What were the working hours of  the appl icant?  ---

 From a Monday through Friday paral le l  to of f ice hours.  

Tuesdays though would be of f  days.   Saturdays would be 

product ion and Mondays would be later hours ( indist inct) .  

COURT:  So Saturday product ion,  sorry.   I  d id not  catch that 5 

a l l?  ---   Ja,  Saturday product ion ( indist inct) .  

 Yes and?  ---   And Monday would be later than normal 

of f ice hours.  

 So i t  would be longer,  longer hours.   ---   Longer than 

what is ref lected here.  10 

MR LEWIS:  So am I  correct  in saying that  th is paragraph here 

was in ef fect  of  no consequence?  I t  d id not  ref lect  the 

Saturday …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  I t  is  d i f ferent .   I t  does not ref lect  what –  I  do not 

th ink you can ask her what the  legal ef fect of  the matter is.  15 

MR LEWIS:  No, no.  

COURT:  You can make your submissions,  but  the point  is that 

what is stated in the contract  is d i f ferent  f rom what –  the 

evidence that  Ms Dean has given.  That is correct .  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, is i t  not  t rue that  a uni lateral  change to 20 

the working t ime occurred on 18 May 2006 and not pr ior to 

appointment?   

COURT:  What was the uni lateral  change?  

MR LEWIS:  The change f rom the hours,  which would be 

Monday to Fr iday,  to include the Saturday.   ---   Mr Lewis,  just  25 



MR LEWIS 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

350 A DEAN 

 

20.01.2010/15:04-16:40/LL / . . .  

assist  me.  What day of  the week is the 18 t h? 

 18 May, gosh.  I  can have a look quickly.  

COURT:  A Thursday.  ---   A Thursday.  

MR LEWIS:  Thursday.  ---   And the uni lateral  –  sorry,  could 

you just  repeat that  p lease?  5 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  maybe if  he  te l ls the witness what 

actual ly happened on that  day –  because i t  is  a legal concept.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Yes. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  So what is he saying caused that 10 

…(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  There was a meet ing that  we had on Thursday at 

which Warren Charles was not present.   Is that  correct?  ---   

Warren Charles was certa in ly not  present on the Thursday the 

18 t h ,  but  I  st i l l  can‟t  agree to the statement that  there had been 15 

a meet ing.   ( Indist inct)  …(intervent ion)   

 Was there no meeting where the …(inte rvent ion)   

COURT :   Won‟t you te l l  the witness …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  What meet ing and what the meet ing was about and 20 

who was there so that  she can answer your quest ion.  

MR LEWIS:  Was there no meet ing where myself ,  you and 

Sedrick Tal jaard were present?  ---   There was a meet ing on 

the 30 t h .  

COURT:  On what? In respect of  what?  25 



MR LEWIS 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

351 A DEAN 

 

20.01.2010/15:04-16:40/LL / . . .  

MR LEWIS:  On the 18 t h .  

COURT:  On the 18 t h .   - --   The 18 t h? 

MR LEWIS:  The Thursday.  ---   Could you just  help with the 

venue of  the meet ing and the agenda?  

 I t  would have been at  the …(intervent ion)   - --   5 

( Indist inct) .  

 I t  would have been at  WP Koerante .   You would have told 

me that I  was work ing on Saturday.   ---   In Bel lvi l le?  

 Yes.  ---   I  don‟t  recal l  such a meet ing and I  a lso f ind i t  

d i f f icul t  that with us being stat ioned in Tokai at that  t ime, 10 

( indist inct) ,  that  the both of  us would dr ive through to Bel lvi l le  

for a meet ing.  

 Was there no meet ing at  which you to ld me what the new 

parameters of  the working t ime consisted of?  ---   My memory 

does not have a meet ing,  but  we did d iscuss i t  in  the run -up to 15 

product ion that  we would be doing layout on Saturday and 

cont inued product ion on a Monday.  

 And what were my words to you?  ---   Well ,  I  don‟t  recal l  

an object ion because that  is how i t  then proceeded.  

 Ms Dean, you knew that  changing the deadl ine on Friday 20 

to 4:00 p.m. would af fect  the working hours,  d id you not?  ---  I  

st i l l  don‟t  understand your assert ion that  there had been a 

uni lateral  change to a deadl ine and whom changed the 

deadl ine and f rom when to when.  

 Well ,  perhaps I  can rephrase th is quest ion.   Who sets 25 
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deadl ines at  a –  for copy editor ia l  at  a newspaper?  ---   The 

editor.  

 The editor?  ---   Uh. 

 So if  anyone had changed the deadl ine i t  would have 

been you?  ---   Yes,  i t  would have been me.  5 

 Can you remember at  a l l  whether you –  what the deadl ine 

was in the production cycle?  You moved the product ion cycle 

f rom a Monday to Fr iday to a Monday to Saturday and there 

was a deadl ine for news copy coming into the newsroom in 

order for i t  to be la id out  and p rocessed.  ---   We were deal ing 10 

with two separate deadl ines there.  You say that  we moved our  

Monday to Fr iday deadl ine and product ion was changed to a 

Monday to a Saturday.   I t  could not have been changed 

because the Fr iday would never have been possib le  as the 

( indist inct)  would st i l l  be compi led on a Fr iday,  so we would 15 

never have had a product ion run f rom a Monday to a Fr iday as 

there would be no pages to work on.   They would only ever be 

avai lable on a Saturday,  so there has been no change there 

( indist inct)  …(intervent ion)   

 The two weeks that  I  worked at Media,  at  the People‟s 20 

Post,  what was the deadl ine for the product ion?  ---   The 

product ion in terms of  layout would always have commenced 

on a Saturday as there was no template of  pages to work on 

pr ior to a Saturday.  

 And who would have done the subbing?  ---   Subbing was 25 
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part  of  your task ( indist inct -microphone of f ) .  And to get  to the 

second deadl ine you ment ioned on the copy deadl ine side.  

 Right .   ---   That was a Fr iday,  so that  we would be able 

to lay out  on a Saturday.  

 And what t ime exact ly was that  deadl ine?  ---   The f i rst  5 

week the system gave horrendous problems  and people were 

fa l l ing behind,  so i t  get  later than what any of  us would have 

want i t  to have been.  

 And how long were we work ing on the Fr iday?  ---   I  can‟ t  

recal l .  10 

 When did we go home?  ---   The Friday when everybody 

went home i t  d id vary.   Each journal ist  and each person who 

was contr ibut ing had a dif ferent  level  of  workload.  Some lef t  

ear l ier than others.   We did not  a l l  depar t  at  the same t ime.  

 What t ime would you have gone home on a Fr iday?   15 

COURT:  This is a Fr iday.   This is a part icular Fr iday?  

MR LEWIS:  Wel l ,  there are two Fridays in quest ion.  

COURT:  This is the Fr iday the 19 t h?  Am I  correct?  ---   Yes,  i t  

is .  

 Ja,  Fr iday the 19 t h .  20 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  ---   I t  was def in i te ly af ter e ight  o ‟c lock.  

 After e ight  o ‟c lock?  - --   The exact t ime I  can‟t  recal l .  

 So you knew that changing the deadl ine to Fr iday 4:00 

p.m. would af fect  the working hours?  There would be a,  a.   ---

 I  st i l l  have not –  I  must just correct  you there, that  I  have not 25 
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yet  said that  we have a 4:00 deadl ine.   What I  d id say was that  

the system was giving us problems.  

 Right .   ---   And we were slower in get t ing th ings through 

and that  people lef t  at  d if feren t  t imes, but …(intervent ion)   

 But we worked unti l  9:30 at  least .   ---   I  can‟ t  conf i rm.  As 5 

I  said …(intervent ion)   

 Cannot conf i rm i t .   - --   People lef t  at  d i f ferent  t imes and I 

lef t  af ter e ight .  

 You lef t  af ter e ight .   ---   And I  can‟t  say …(intervent ion)  

 So you cannot …(intervent ion)   10 

COURT:  Let  the witness answer the quest ion,  Mr Lewis.  

MR LEWIS:  Sorry.   ---   I  can‟ t  say exact ly what t ime I  lef t  that 

–  the Fr iday night .  

 Do you know when your person doing the pre -subbing 

work would have lef t?  ---   Wel l ,  certa in ly before me as I  would 15 

have been the one to lock up the of f ice,  but  I  am not sure what 

t ime again as people lef t  at  d if ferent t imes.  

 Ms Dean, d id you know or were you aware that  I  was a 

Jew and that Fr iday night  observance is one of  the 

requirements of  Judaism?  ---   I  was not aware.  20 

 Did i t  come as a complete surpr ise?  ---   I t  d id.  

 There was nothing in your mind to even suggest that  I  

might be of  the Jewish fa i th?  ---   No.  

 Nothing.   Do you have any idea whatsoever that  I  was a 

member of  any re l igious group at a l l?  ---   We did not  ta lk 25 
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about that .  

 So there was no benchmark for cul tural  or socia l  

re l igious mores  at  the company?  ---   I  would not comment on 

benchmarking on re l igion and cul tural  f ront .  

 What would you say the cul ture at Me dia 24 –  is  i t  a 5 

Christ ian or ientated or is i t  just something else?  

MR KAHANOVITZ :   W ith respect, M‟Lord,  i t  is  a h ighly 

abstract .  Maybe he wants to put  a proposit ion to the witness 

on –  I  do not  know where th is a l l  f i ts into the case for a start,  

but  maybe he could put  something more concrete.   I  do not 10 

th ink she can real ly answer the question.  

COURT:  Wel l ,  let  h im ask the quest ion and let  us just  see 

where i t  goes.  

MR LEWIS:  I  am going to pose direct ly that  you assumed that 

…(intervent ion)   15 

COURT:  What is the quest ion you want to ask?  You want to 

ask whether …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  The, the …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Am I  r ight  in saying that  the quest ion you want to ask 

is whether the respondent is or ientated –  is  or ientated towards 20 

the Christ ian re l igion.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Rather than others.   Is that  your quest ion?  

MR LEWIS:  Yes,  that  would be my quest ion.  

COURT:  Are you able to comment on that?  ---   I  can only say 25 
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that  I  in  my posit ion need to take cognisance of  di f ferent 

re l igions and dif ferent  ( indist inct -microphone of f )  and that  that 

is my approach.  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, i f  the company was a Jewish company 

do you th ink that  the working hours would have been di f ferent? 5 

 ---   My personal opin ion on –  i f  you run a company with a  

certa in grouping of  people in i t  would be that  i t  would be your 

choice to accept the dif ferent  aspects of  the environment 

including the hours  ( indist inct) .  

 So I  was just  expected to fa l l  in  l ine with whatever the 10 

environment was.  ---   I  could only say that  you had not at any 

point  ra ised any discomfort  on the basis of  ( indist inct) .  

 Ms Dean, d id you change the product ion cycle so that i t  

would conf l ict  wi th Shabbat because I  was giving you uphi l l?   

---   No.  15 

 There were no conf l icts in the newsroom?  ---   Could you 

be a l i t t le  b i t  more specif ic in terms of  which type of  conf l icts 

( indist inct) .  

 There were no conf l icts between the cul tural  background 

that  I  had come out of  and your cul tural  background for 20 

instance?  ---   No conf l ict  had been brought to my at tent ion . 

 So you assume that  your cul tural  –  your cul ture coming 

f rom Bloemfontein for instance was the prevalent  d iscourse, 

the prevalent  manner in which work should be conducted?  Is 

that  correct?  ---   I  d id not  assume so.  25 
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 You did not  assume so?  ---   ( Indist inct) .  

 Ms Dean, can I refer you to page 36?  

COURT:  Of what? 

MR LEWIS:  Your d iary.  

COURT:  What bundle?  What bundle,  Mr Lewis?  5 

MR LEWIS:  I t  would be the bundle.  

COURT:  Pardon?  What bundle? 

MR LEWIS:  I t  would be the –  a l l  r ight ,  that  would be the 

respondent ‟s bundle of  documents.  

COURT:  Page 30? 10 

MR LEWIS:  Page 36.  Do you have it  in  f ront  of  you?  ---   Yes,  

i t  is .  

 Can you see i t?   A diary page were made 2006, Tuesday 

the 30 t h .   Do you remember th is day?  ---   Yes,  I  do.  

 Can you expla in the two ent r ies in the diary?  There is an 15 

entry 9:00 Sedrick and then there is an entry 10:00 Topic: 

Overt ime ta lk.   ---   9:00 was the meet ing that  Sedrick Tal jaard 

came down for with Warren Charles with yoursel f  and the 

10:00 one Sedrick had ra ised concern over sta rt ing layout on 

Saturday r ight  af ter the working week and he and I  were going 20 

to ta lk around which would be better:   Start ing layout on the 

Saturday or let t ing people come in on the Sunday as was the 

pract ice at  Tygerburger and we were going to d iscuss the  two 

opt ions. 

 Right ,  Ms Dean, was th is not  in fact  the evaluation 25 
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meet ing at  10:00 on that  day?  ---   No. 

 There was no evaluat ion meet ing on that  day?  ---   There 

was and that  is the entry at  9:00.  

 9:00.   ---   W ith Sedrick.  

 Are you sure i t  is not  10:00?  ---   Well ,  I  bel ieve i t  is  5 

9:00.   No, i t  is  9:00.  

 Would you have spoken to Sedrick before the meet ing 

and then had a meet ing where overt ime ta lk was the subject  of  

an evaluat ion meet ing?  ---   No, Mr Lewis.   Sedrick and Warren 

Charles and myself  met wi th you at  9:00 …(intervent ion)   10 

 To discuss Sedrick?  

COURT:  Let  the witness f in ish.  

MR LEWIS:  Sorry.   - --   My diary can‟t  be read l i teral ly to 

represent the ent ire agenda and at tendees of  a meeting.   I t  

said 9:00 Sedrick in a way that I  would note to mys elf  that  I  15 

would be meet ing with Sedrick on a matter.   The meet ing was 

with yoursel f  and Mr Warren Charles and Sedrick and myself .   

The 10:00 overt ime ta lk,  again not  l i tera l ,  but  i t  was to d iscuss 

which would be better in terms of  the two product ion opt io ns of  

cont inuing the layout on a Saturday versus the Sunday.  20 

 Right ,  Ms Dean, surely i f  the problem had been the use 

of  profani ty in the newsroom that  would have been a topic for 

d iscussion.   ---   Are you asking why i t  is  lacking in my diary?  

 I  am just wondering why your d iary contradicts the 

statement?  ---   My diary again is a note to myself .  25 
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 Right .   ---   And that  I  would be wel l  aware of  what I  would 

need to note down, what I  would not need to note down and i t  

is  certa in ly not  ( indist inct -microphone of f ) .  

 So you did not  have to remind yoursel f  that  there was a 

problem of  the use of  profani ty because the subject  was 5 

overt ime ta lk?  ---   Again,  I  need to correct  you.  The meet ing 

with yoursel f  was at  9:00 .   Sedrick and I  were going to ta lk 

thereafter about …(intervent ion)   

 So you are saying that  the issue of  overt ime and working 

hours has absolute ly no bearing on th is case?  ---   No, we are 10 

ta lk ing about my diary entry ( indist inct)  …(intervent ion)   

 And the overt ime was not an issue, r ight?  ---   W ith in 

your 9:00 meet ing with us?  

 Ms Dean …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  the quest ion is:   Are you asking her 15 

whether overt ime was discussed in the 9:00 meet ing?  

MR LEWIS:  I  th ink one would have to ask that …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Is that the quest ion you were asking her?  So that 

she knows what she has to answer?  

MR LEWIS:  I  am just  very puzzled that ,  that  …(intervent ion)   20 

COURT:  No, no,  no,  I  do not want you to be puzzled.   You 

have got p lenty of  t ime to ref lect  and argue the matter.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Just  ask the witness a quest ion so she can answer i t .   

Is the quest ion you are asking that  whether overt ime was 25 
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d iscussed in the meet ing with you at  the t ime she says i t  took 

place which was at  9:00?  Is that the quest ion you are asking 

her? 

MR LEWIS:  I  actual ly had a dif ferent quest ion.  

COURT:  Okay.  5 

MR LEWIS:  What is the –  when does the day start  at  People‟s 

Post?  ---   The of f ice hours? 

 Yes.  ---   Would be 08:30 to 16:30 in terms of  our 

recept ionist .  

 So a 9:00 evaluation meet ing would not  be c onsidered 10 

out of  the ordinary?  ---   No. 

 And i t  would not  be considered out of  the ordinary to 

immediately af ter a 9:00 evaluat ion meet ing to have an 

overt ime ta lk at  10:00?  ---   I t  makes sense in that  Sedrick was 

coming through for a meet ing with you and he had to come in 15 

over the weekend to see how we were far ing on product ion on 

the Saturday and he fe l t  that  coming through that  Tuesday 

would give opportune t ime for h im and myself  to d iscuss the 

better opt ion between working on a Saturday on product ion or 

having a break on the Saturday ( indist inct)  …(intervention)   20 

 Miss,  miss,  miss …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Let  her answer the quest ion,  Mr Lewis.  

MR LEWIS:  Sorry.  

COURT:  Now I  have real ly,  I  have asked you to do th is now on 

several  occasions and al l  I  require you to do is wait  unt i l  the 25 



MR LEWIS 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

361 A DEAN 

 

20.01.2010/15:04-16:40/LL / . . .  

wi tness has f in ished answering and then you ask your 

quest ion.   Now as i t  happens I  now do not real ly know what the 

witness answered to the quest ion,  so where my note stop is 

that  you said that  i t  made sense because Mr Tal jaard was 

coming through to meet with you in respect of  the appl icant.    5 

---   That is t rue.  

 And then you were discussing –  and then you said to 

d iscuss something.   ---   Then we would –  myself  and Sedrick –

would ta lk about which would be the better option for 

product ion to take place on a Saturday,  as had happened with 10 

the f i rst  edi t ion,  or on the Sunday which was pract ice at 

Tygerburger,  our s ister publ icat ion,  and ( indist inct -microphone 

of f ) .   I t  made sense because in h is ro le he would not  come 

through to  the Tokai of f ice al l  the t ime, he was based in 

Bel lvi l le  and we would deal with a l l  necessary matters.  I f  he 15 

should come on one matter we would then deal with other 

matters whi le he is avai lable in Tokai.  

 Mr Lewis?  

MR LEWIS:  So the evaluat ion meet ing,  which we have gone 

into length in your previous test imony, occurred not at  9:00, 20 

but at  10:00?  ---   I  correct  you again.   I t  occurred at  9:00.  

 At  9:00.   So the 10:00 meet ing would have fa l len away, is 

that  correct?  ---   The 10:00 meet ing was to d iscuss p roduct ion 

( indist inct) .   I t  was between myself  and Sedrick.  

 Oh, so the 10:00 meet ing is just  a chat that  you had with 25 
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Sedrick.   ---   Yes. 

 Al l  r ight .   Ms Dean, are you aware of the correspondence 

between myself  and Sedrick Tal jaard?  There is an emai l  on 

page 16 of  my bundle I  bel ieve.  

COURT:  Which bundle is that?  5 

MR LEWIS:  I t  would be in my bundle.  

COURT:  Is that  your f i rst  bundle?  You have got two bundles.  

MR LEWIS:  Yes,  i t  would be –  le t  us have a look.  

COURT:  And what page is i t?  What page?  

MR LEWIS:  Maybe i t  is  the second one.   Sorry,  i t  is  the 10 

respondent ‟s bundle of  documents.  

COURT:  And the page number?  

MR LEWIS:  Page 16. 

COURT:  Page 16.  

MR LEWIS:  Respondent ‟s bundle.  Sorry,  M‟Lord ,  are we 15 

there?  ---   Yes,  I  am. 

 Are you –  have you seen th is –  are you aware of  th is 

document?  ---   ( Indist inct)  I  am. 

 Is i t  fami l iar?  ---   Yes,  ( indist inct) .  

 What is i t?  ---   I t  is  an emai l  f rom yoursel f  to my 20 

publ isher at  the t ime.  

 In the last paragraph –  what is your understanding of  

that?  ---   You are stat ing to my publ isher that  whi le you are 

wi l l ing to generate arts and cul ture copy at  no extra cost  you 

are averse to part ing with your good name or generat ing copy 25 
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under duress ( indist inct) .  

 Right .   Perhaps I  could just  go back to the contract  which  

is on –  in  the bundle,  page 5.  

COURT :   Respondent ‟s bundle?  

MR LEWIS:  Right .   I t  refers to a job descript ion as –  there is 5 

an addendum.  Why is the addendum –  the job descript ion not 

at tached to the contract  of  employment?  ---   I  cannot answer 

that  quest ion. 

 You agree that the job descript ion was for a layout sub? 

 ---   The job descript ion would also have included the content 10 

generat ing and pre-subbing tasks.  

 Al l  r ight .  

COURT:  Sorry,  i t  would include pre -subbing and?  ---   And the 

content generat ion.  

 And what is …(intervent ion)   - --   The wri t ing of  art ic les.  15 

 Rewr i t ing?  ---   The wri t ing of  art ic les.  

 The wri t ing.   -- -   The wr i t ing o f  art ic les,  content 

generat ion.  

MR LEWIS:  Can I draw your at tent ion to paragraph 5.1,  page 

6 of  the bundle,  which would  be the contract  job descript ion.   I t  20 

has got a phrase here:  

“Should work not  be avai lable in a certa in category the 

employee may not unreasonable refuse to do other work 

that  fa l ls with in h is or her abi l i t ies.”  

 Ms Dean, would you consider sub -edit ing and news 25 
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report ing as being in the same category of  work?  ---   I  would.  

 Would you consider the work of  a photographer as being 

in the same category of  work as an editor?  ---   Yes,  I  would.  

 Ms Dean, what is the ro le of  a copy taster?   

COURT:  Sorry,  a copy? 5 

MR LEWIS:  A copy taster.  

COURT:  A copy taster? 

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  Al l  r ight ,  so how do you spel l  that?  

MR LEWIS:  Copy …(intervent ion)   10 

COURT:  As in taster? 

MR LEWIS:  Yes.  ---   A copy taster would pre -sub mater ia l 

and pick up any problems and def ic iencies before i t  moves on 

down the varying levels of  subbing.  

 Is i t  not  correct  to say that  as that  job,  that  t i t le,  would 15 

ref lect ,  a copy taster would have problems wri t ing reports  –  

the taste of  copy for instance of  the way –  the subbing process 

is very d i f ferent  f rom a –  for instance l ike a news gathering 

process?  ---   I  would counter that  the two, as I  said when you 

asked me, are similar in nature.  20 

 Right .   ---   Report ing and subbing and that there are a 

number of  examples to show that  the two r o les are –  that  one 

person can fu lf i l  the two ro les with comfort .  

 Yes.  Can one person f i t  the two ro les simultaneously?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  I  th ink we have been very pat ient .  25 
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I  cannot work out  what any of  these quest ions have to do with 

the cla im, the discr iminat ion cla im.  

COURT:  My understanding of  h is –  of  the matter is that  –  that 

in a sense he is being targeted.  That is the argument as I  

understand i t ,  that he is being targeted.  And so I  do th ink th is 5 

fa l ls with in,  broadly,  what he argues to co nst i tute 

d iscr iminat ion,  that  in a sense th is is the basis upon which the 

harassment c la ims he makes f low.  So I  am going to a l low 

these quest ions, but  I  agree with you they are on the 

borderl ine of  re levance.  10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  As the Court  p leases.  

MR LEWIS:  Thank you, M‟Lord .  Sorry,  Ms Dean. The quest ion 

is can a person who is in the ro le of  a sub simultaneously fu lf i l  

the ro le of  a reporter?  ---   Yes.  

 And simultaneous to those two categories of  work a lso 15 

lay out  pages?  ---   Yes.  

 Al l  r ight .   Can I  draw your at tent ion to the art ic le 19 in 

the contract?  There is a category cal led „ inte l lectual  property 

r ights‟ .  

COURT :   That is at  page 13 of  the respondent ‟s bundle.  20 

MR LEWIS:  Right .   Ms Dean, what is the posi t ion of  the 

company with regard to ownership a nd contro l  of  the byl ine of  

a reporter?  ---   I  choose not to comment on that .  I  don‟t  feel  I  

am in the best  posi t ion to comment on that .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  I  am not sure the –  maybe Your 25 
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Lordship can assist  the witness here in the sense –  maybe if  

the quest ion could be clar if ied.  

COURT:  Yes. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  So i t  does not create the impression that 

we are del iberately not  t rying to answer a quest ion.  5 

COURT:  That she is not  refusing.   Yes.   Are you aware of  

what the company‟s pol icy is  on the ownersh ip  of  intel lectual 

property?  ---   No and I  am not qual i f ied to speak on that .  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, isn‟ t  one‟s name one‟s stock in trade?   

- --   In journal ism, yes.  10 

 Do you own my byl ine or not?  ---   I  have admit ted that I  

am not the best  qual i f ied person  to speak on the company‟s 

pol icy re lat ing to byl ines and inte l lectual  property.  

 But you are aware that  there was correspondence with 

Tal jaard about my byl ine?  ---   Only because they were 15 

included in your bundle.  

 Oh, so i t  was new to you?  I t  was just  s omething that 

popped up now?  ---   To see that.  

 Al l  r ight .  Can I  refer you to the KPA?  

COURT:  The what?  Sorry?  20 

MR LEWIS:  There is a document in the second bundle of  my 

own bundle,  page 1 to 3,  17 May 2006.  

COURT:  Is that  the key performance areas?  

MR LEWIS:  Right .   

COURT :   Okay, i t  is  appl icant ‟s bundle.  25 
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MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Page 1 to 3.  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, do you recognise your name on that 

page?  ---   Yes,  I  do.  

 And the preceding two pages you have –  th is is  a 5 

document that  you have –  you would have been involved in.    

- --   Yes,  I  would have.  

 Right .  What was your response when I  approached you 

with issues regarding the byl ine and the KPA?  ---   Mr Lewis,  I  

don‟t  recal l  …(intervent ion)   10 

COURT:  Please –  sorry,  I  do not want to –  just  draw my 

at tent ion to which provis ion in pages 1 to 3 are you referr ing 

to? 

MR LEWIS:  I tem 3,  KPA prior i ty way(?) 2.5.  

COURT:  Is that  wri te enterta inment art ic le?  15 

MR LEWIS:  Wri te enterta inment art icles.  

COURT :   Okay.  So won‟t  you ask your quest ion –  your 

quest ion re lates to th is part icular …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Yes,  yes.  

COURT :   Okay, then in l ight  of  paragraph 3 on page 2 won‟t 20 

you ask that  question again?  I  d id not  get  i t .  

MR LEWIS:  Right .   Ms Dean, you would have been involved in 

the drawing up of  th is  document.   Is that  not  correct?  ---   Yes,  

I  would have been.  

 And me supplying wr i t ten enterta inment art ic les to the 25 
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company was not something that  you considered odd?  ---   Not 

at  a l l .  

 So you expected me to submit  art ic les with my byl ine, 

even though I  was subbing and laying out?  ---   As I  indicated 

with your previous l ine of  quest ioning that  i t  is  not  uncommon.  5 

 I t  is  not  uncommon you say?  ---   No, i t  is  not  uncommon.  

 Al l  r ight .   Ms Dean, can I  ask you again then what was 

your react ion when I  approached you with th is problem?  ---   

Mr Lewis,  I  can‟t  recal l  you approaching me with a problem 

around th is.   As I stated earl ier,  you approached me on the 10 

content s ide for enterta inment, arts and cul ture with 

enthusiasm to d iscuss your ideas,  to the point  wh ere i t  

somet imes did d isrupt  my work.  

 Right .   Ms Dean, my notebook l ists seven dist inct 

product ion processes . 15 

COURT:  Your notebook? 

MR LEWIS:  Yes. I  real ised I have not actual ly brought my 

notebook today.  

COURT:  Yes, but what is the re levance of  your n otebook, Mr 

Lewis? 20 

MR LEWIS:  Okay, Ms Dean, could you perhaps l ist the seven 

–  the stages of  the product ion process at  People‟s Post for the 

court  p lease?  ---   Well ,  once the content has been f i led on the 

system and al l  the art ic les are there myself  and a sub-editor 

on a Saturday go through the content to ensure that  i t  is  up to 25 
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standard and I l is t  the art ic les submitted and plan their 

p lacement across the var ious edi t ions that Saturday.   On a 

Sunday I  wi l l  have planned placement of  the art ic les and a 

shi f t  of  journal ists come in and do the layout assigned for that 

Sunday‟s work and on a Monday the balance of  the pages, 5 

being the sport  pages and the f ront -end news pages are 

completed by layout and the newspaper then goes to pr int  that 

Monday night .  

 Ms Dean, you have to ld the court  how the appl icant was 

retra ined on the Eidos publ ishing system.  ---   That is t rue.  10 

 Right .   Could you perhaps te l l  us what the var ious stages 

of  the –  there is a seven stage process.   ---   Mr Lewis,  just,  

sorry,  help me with which part  of  Eidos –  because ( indist inct) 

…(intervent ion)   

 There are f lags in d i f ferent  colours,  f rom ready, news 15 

gathering …(intervent ion)   - --   W ith specif ic reference to 

art ic les? 

 With specif ic reference to the system as opposed to your 

own system –  you have to ld us about your own system.  Can 

you please te l l  us about the system that  was in p lace?  ---   On 20 

the content s ide Eidos, our content management system 

…(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Sorry,  how do you spel l  Eidos and what does i t  stand 

for?  ---   I t  is  an I ta l ian generic company name.  I t  is  an I ta l ian 

sof tware company that  designed Eidos.   E-I -D-O-S.  And i t  is 25 
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the just  the product ‟s name.  

 What does i t  do?  ---   I t  is  a content management system 

that  can be applied to our model of  publ ishing,  which is 

mult ip le edi t ion publ ishing.  I t  enables that  and i t  a lso enables 

t racking and l ive management across var ious funct ions.   So it  5 

is qui te an integrated system.  What Mr Lewis is referring to is 

to enable the l ive management where you are able to get  a 

snapshot view of  where you are in the product ion l ine f rom any 

workstat ion.   Eidos has a f lagging system which gives you the 

opt ion to put  the content in certa in colour categories and f lags 10 

to anyone on the system immediately where that  art ic le is in 

the workf low process,  f rom wri t ing through to ready.  And in 

between those two poles you would have the opt ion of  f lagging 

for edi t ing,  for a legal check,  for a rewri te,  for selected for 

publ ishing.  The number of  opt ions Mr Lewis says is seven. I  15 

can‟ t  conf i rm, ( indis t inct) ,  however you are not  under any 

obl igat ion to use the fu l l  run of  f lagging.   I t  depends on the 

complexi ty of  your news management system and at  People‟s 

Post we use four colours,  because we do not have a complex 

hierarchical  news content management s tructure.  20 

MR LEWIS:  Thank you, Ms Dean.  Ms Dean, was there or was 

there not  a problem with the metadata at  People‟s Post?  - --   

There was not a problem with the metadata.  ( Indist inct)  def ine 

problem? 

 Was the data l ine slowing …(intervent ion)   - --   Oh, the 25 
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data l ine.  

 … the product ion process down?  - --   Yes,  the data l ine 

did s low down our product ion ( indist inct)  and there was a 

problem. 

 Right .   On page 24 of appl icant ‟s bundle there is a 5 

typical  …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Which bundle?  You have got two  bundles,  so please 

…(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  My f i rst  bundle,  sorry.   Ms Dean, which level  was 

th is page in?  ---   Mr Lewis,  I  can‟t  conf i rm because the 10 

f lagging system does not give any indicat ion upon a pr intout.  

I t  is  on the screen i tsel f .  

 Right ,  r ight .   ---   That you would see that .  

 So am I  correct  in saying that  the data l ine on the top of  

the page does not real ly have any re levance to the –  to what is 15 

on the page?  ---   There is re levance to i t .  I t  might not  conf i rm 

the status of  the page, but  t here is re levance in the other 

informat ion there that  I  cannot d ismiss.  

 Right .   Could you perhaps te l l  the court  who the author of  

th is page would have been?  ---   The author as Eidos terms as 20 

the person who pr inted the page is yourself .  

 Can you determine who generated, who in i t iated the 

page, who created the page?  ---   No, the pr intout  does not 

give that  indicat ion.  The only way you wi l l  be able to do that is 

to go onto the system i tself  where the t racking is banked, but 25 
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not  reproducing in any form on t he page.  So no deduct ion can 

be made other than that  you pr inted the page.  

 The standard of  the layout on th is page  –  are you –  

would you say th is is a ready page?  ---   I t  is  indeed.  

 Something that  you would not  have any problems with 5 

put t ing your name on that,  on that  page and saying th is is a 

page ready for publ icat ion?  ---   Yes.  

 Yes.   Can I  ask you again to perhaps read, for sense of  

the record,  the author of  th is page?  ---   Mr Lewis,  the author I  

must point  out  to the court  merely states i t  was pr inted the 10 

page and not who la id i t  out or had any other engagement with 

the page other than to say th is is the pr int .  

 Right .   Can you perhaps turn over the page to 25?  Ms 

Dean, th is page, precisely that  problem, has three signatures 

on that  page and your  at torney has graceful ly conceded that 15 

th is is a ready page for product ion that  Br ian Gaffney for 

instance would not  have to come here to test i fy that  th is 

s ignature is indeed his own signature and i t  bears my 

signature as wel l  and the signature of  a col le ague.   Is that  not 

correct?  ---   I t  is  true.  20 

 Could you perhaps read the –  to the court  –  the author of  

the page?  ---   The author who pr inted the page is yoursel f .  

 Right .   ---   I  would l ike to just  c lar i fy to the court ‟s 

understanding though that  Br ian Gaffney would not  s ign of f  on 

a layout page, but  being the author of  the ( indist inct),  which 25 
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was also your task and therefore to conclude that  between the 

two possib i l i t ies that  h is s ignature ref lects h is happiness with 

the content or with the page is some thing that  we do not have 

any support ing evidence for.  I t  is  one of  the two, unless you 

would l ike to point  out  something on the page ( indist inct) 5 

…(intervent ion)   

 Right ,  Ms Dean, is your business as a publ isher 

publ ishing?  ---   Myself  as edi tor? 

 Yes, as an editor.   ---   Yes.  

 You are in the publ ishing business.   ---   Yes.  10 

 Ms Dean, on 17 Apri l  there was a conversat ion about the 

demographics of  the target market.   You have to ld the court 

that  the demographics are just  a coincidence, that some of  the 

t i t les just  happen to coincide with part icular ly homogenous 

communit ies.   Does that not  str ike you as strange?    15 

COURT:  What is the quest ion?  The quest ion is that  the 

demographics are coincidental or on 17 Apri l  you had a 

discussion? So th is is why I  am just  unclear …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Wel l ,  yes.  

COURT:  To what you are asking.  20 

MR LEWIS:  Perhaps you could ver i fy whether or not  there was 

such a discussion on 17 Apri l .  

COURT:  W il l  you give the witness then the t ime, the place and 

any other informat ion  so that  she can recol lect  whether th is 

happened?  This took place 17 Apri l  in  2006.  25 
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MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  So please assist the witness so that she can answer 

the quest ion.  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, do you recal l  at  a l l  there being any 

discussions of  such a na ture where the demographics of  the 5 

community would have been a topic?  ---   W ithin People‟s Post 

editor ia l  team? 

 Yes.  ---   No.  

 So the wri ters and reporters p layed no ro le in the 

edi tor ia l  process whatsoever?  ---   They were given the areas 10 

of  d istr ibut ion per edi t ion.   The quest ion was around the 

demographics.  

 Right .   So the edi tor ia l  was an exclusive –  in  your 

exclusive domain as edi tor?  ---   No, you are asking me about 

d iscussion of  the demographics.  15 

 Yes.  ---   And I  said no,  but  the journal ists were given the 

areas of  d istr ibut ion,  a l is t ing of  a l l  the suburbs that formed 

part  of  each edit ion  ( indist inct) .  

 Would you not,  as edi tor,  have enterta ined any ideas 

about the racia l  composit ion of  the communit ies?  ---   Would I  20 

have enterta ined ideas about  i t? 

 Would you have been conf ronted for instance with issues 

such as racia l  segregat ion or the ef fects thereof?  ---   Would I  

have? 

 Yes.  ---   In terms of  d iscussing demographics with the 25 
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journal ists? 

 Surely you are an editor,  th is is not  something that  is 

…(intervent ion)   - --   Do you mean to say would I  take into 

account …(intervent ion)   

 Yes.   ---   The ( indist inct)  of  readers we would be 5 

target ing ( indist inct) .  

 Right .   And would i t  be safe to say that  the demographics 

of  the False Bay or the Tokai edi t ion of  People‟s Post would 

have been very d if ferent to the Lansdowne/Grassy Park 

edi t ion?  ---   Yes,  they would.  10 

 Was i t  not your strategy to employ people such as me, 

with my background, in order to pursue your growth in the 

company in those areas?  ---   No. 

 So my background at  South and Grassroots had 

absolute ly no re levance to the demographics of  the area?  ---   15 

No, your background ( indist inct)  CV had re levance to the tasks 

we would require you to have done.  

 Ms Dean, you are an adult .   - --   Yes.  

 You must be aware that  there was a t remendous amount 

of  conf l ict  in th is country at  least a decade ago.   ---   Yes 20 

( indist inct) .  

 Yes.   ---   ( Indist inct) .  

 You are aware that  there was a system of  racia l  

segregat ion?  ---   Yes.  

 And that  the Group Areas Act for  instance –  you cannot 25 
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say that  i t  is  coincidental  that  certa in people l ive in certa in 

areas,  can you?  ---   No, i t  was planned.  

 What steps did you take to amel iorate the ef fects of  

those racia l  pol ic ies?  ---   Through our publ ishing model?  

 Right .   ---   Through the way we do our work?  5 

COURT:  Let  me just  ask –  are you asking what she personal ly 

d id or are you asking what the respondent d id?  

MR LEWIS:  I  am asking what Ms Dean, as the edi tor of  a 

…(intervent ion)   

COURT:  What the edi tor d id?  10 

MR LEWIS:  Yes.   What d id you personal ly do?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  I  do not know i f  you are going to 

a l low th is?  Again, I  cannot see what i t  has got to do with h is 

c la im.  Because now we are asking –  I  mean –  is  i t  being 

suggested that  she was under some obl igat ion a r is ing f rom the 15 

pleadings to do something about th is and i t  bears some 

relevance to th is case? 

MR LEWIS:  But,  Your Honour …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  What is the re levance of  the quest ion?  

MR LEWIS:  The re levance is,  is that  the edi tor ia l  pol ic ies –  20 

and I  have made al legat ions of  pol icy –  d id not  occur in a 

vacuum.  There were day to day issues conf ronted on a dai ly 

basis and Ms Dean was conf ronted with var ious choices and I 

am just  t rying to  assist  people in f inding the t ruth of  what 

those decis ions and cho ices were.   So I  am just  asking,  Ms 25 
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Dean, what were your decis ions?  

COURT:  No, Mr Lewis.   I  am giv ing you such extraordinary 

leeway here because you are unrepresented.  That quest ion 

would not  –  most of  or many of  your quest ions would probably 

have been d isal lowed.  5 

MR LEWIS:  Okay.  

COURT:  And I am just  ref lect ing on a whole range of  

quest ions you have asked and you have taken the Court 

nowhere with.    

MR LEWIS:  Sorry? 10 

COURT:  Al l  the sub-edit ing,  copy tast ing,  a l l  of  that , have –  

unless you are going to enl ighten me in argument –  I  do not 

see where those arguments are going and where your 

quest ioning is going.  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, are you famil iar with an emai l  sent on 15 

Wednesday, May 24 t h  2006 at  2:38 p.m.?  I t  is  on page 3 of  my 

bundle.  

COURT:  Which bund le? 

MR LEWIS:  I t  wi l l  be the.  

COURT:  So is that  the…  20 

MR LEWIS:  The f i rst  bundle,  page 3.   ---   Yes,  sorry,  I  am 

aware of  th is emai l .  

 You received i t?  ---   Yes,  I  d id.  

 And you are famil iar with the content?  ---   Yes.  

 Why on earth would I  take the t rouble to meet  with 25 
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Rashid Lombard?  ---   I  can‟ t  answer that  for you.  

 Did you not request the heart  and soul of  the community? 

 ---   In the launch I  said many th ings designed to real ly get  the 

journal ists to go out and do their  work with passion.   And if  we 

are going to be an ef fect ive community newspaper publ icat ion 5 

we need to have people real ly re lat ing.  

 And did we not decide that  the best  method of  re lat ing to 

the community was with –  through jazz?  ---   You suggested 

that  enthusiast ical ly in those …(intervent ion)   

 Right .   ---   Many t imes you were ( indist inct)  ta lk ing about 10 

the content ( indist inct) .  

 Right .   And you were completely happy with me going of f  

on my own steam.  ---   Yes,  yes,  Mr Lewis.  You were 

passionate about i t .   Your background spoke of  an abi l i ty to 

produce the goods and I  bel ieved there would be value to our 15 

of fer ing if  you were to contr ibute that  and what you 

emphasised was a grassroots jazz approach which I  was very 

comfortable with.  

 So there was some discussion about provid ing some  form 

of  jazz content,  jazz- focused content to the People‟s Post?  - --20 

 Yes, you were very enthusiast ic about doing that .  

 Right .   Can I  show you a let ter in my second bundle,  on 

page 4 of  my second bundle,  a let ter f rom Rashid Lombard.   Is 

th is let ter fami l iar?  ---   No, i t  is  not  famil iar.  

 Would you not at  least  be au fa i t  wi th the contents?  ---   I  25 
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just  want to read ( indist inct) .   (Short  pause).   Okay, yes,  I  

have read i t .  

 You do know who Rashid Lombard is?  ---   Yes.  

 And you do know that  he of fered to  provide access to his 

archive of  photography spanning 28 years at  a fee?  ---   I  do 5 

know that  you were going to meet with h im.  You had 

communicated that to me.  

 So you were also aware that  there would have been a 

possib i l i ty of  advert is ing for instance?  ---   No, I  was not 

aware.  10 

 Not?  ---   No.  One would assume that  opportuni t ies 

could f low f rom ( indist inct)  …(intervent ion)   

 Right .   ---   … discussions, but to presume 

…(intervent ion)   

 So.  ---   ( Indist inct) .  15 

 So what was your response when he cal led yo u?  ---   No, 

you gave me his card and I  was to cal l  h im.  

 Oh, you were to cal l  h im.  Ms Dean, can I  point  you to 

the Robbie Jansen art ic le,  just  the photograph of  –  sorry,  the 

photograph of  J immy Dludlu on page 37 of  the respond ent ‟s 20 

bundle of  documents?  Have you seen the photograph of  

J immy Dludlu?  Who is the author of  that  photograph?  ---   

( Indist inct) .  

 Right .   ---   I t  looks l ike i t  could be Steve Gordon.  

COURT:  Sorry,  I  d id not  get  that?  ---   Steve Gordon. I  am 25 
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assuming the O-N fo l lowed there because i t  is  cut of f  at  the 

page. 

MR LEWIS:  And does Media 24 own th is part icular 

photograph?  ---   I  would need to know i f  Steve Gordon worked 

for Media 24 at the t ime or i f  he had maybe sold a photo to 5 

Media 24 and in the absence of  knowing that I  can‟t  con f i rm or 

deny i t .  

 So as an editor you would not  have been involved in that 

process of  copy wr i te …(intervent ion)   - --   Had you submit ted a 

photo as a journal ist  that  you had used f rom another source 10 

without at t r ibut ion or exposing i t  you would be gui l ty of  an 

of fence.  So had you used a photo f rom a source other than 

Media 24 and there is payment due or you had not got 

permission for i t  and you fa i led to d isclose that ,  there would 

have been consequences to that ,  much as with p lagiar ism.  15 

And you did not  at the t ime of  submitt ing th is d isclose that  th is 

posed a problem in terms of  payment due, permissions that 

needed to be secured …(intervent ion)   

 Ms Dean, was th is not  goodwil l?  Was th is photograph 

not provided as a gesture by Steve Gordon, who does not wor k 20 

for Media 24,  he has a business cal led Making Music?  ---   Mr 

Lewis,  you are the best  person to conf i rm that  s ince you 

sourced the photo.  

 Were you not party to such a discussion?  ---   No. 

 Not?  ---   No. 25 
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 So th is is a l l  just  news to you?  ---   Yes. 

 Right .   Let  us have a look …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Are you moving onto a new topic now?  

MR LEWIS:  Sorry? 

COURT:  Are you moving onto a new topic?  5 

MR LEWIS:  I  am moving onto the original  J immy Dludlu story.  

Sorry.  

COURT:  I  th ink then i t  is  an appropriate  t ime to adjourn for 

the  -  and Mr Lewis,  I  would l ike you over lunch t ime to just 

ref lect  on your quest ioning and just sat isfy yoursel f  that  i t  is 10 

re levant and that –  because I  have real ly given you a very 

wide berth and you real ly ought to focus your que st ions 

deal ing with the pr incipal  issues that  are in d ispute.   Many of  

the issues you have ra ised today are ent i re ly col lateral .  

COURT ADJOURNS   (at 16:40) 15 

COURT RESUMES   (at 15:09) 

ANNELIEN DEAN:   (s.u.o.)  

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  i t  is  2:10.  

MR LEWIS:  Right . 

COURT:  You were required to be at  court  at 2:00.    20 

MR LEWIS:  My watch is a b i t  la te, sorry.  I t  is  a b i t  s low.  

COURT:  I t  does not matter.   You have to make the 

appropriate -  make sure that  you are on t ime.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Ms Dean, you are st i l l  on oath.   ---   Yes.25 
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 Under oath, sorry.   ---   Yes,  Your Honour,  M‟Lord .  

 Mr Lewis?  

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR LEWIS (CONTINUED):    I f  I  

may, i f  we could turn to the Jimmy Dludlu art ic le,  the f i rst 

story,  page 23 of  the respondent ‟s bundle of  documents.  Sor ry,  5 

Ms Dean, the paragraph, I  bel ieve i t  is  paragraph 11, begins:  

“Dludlu ‟s  onl ine biography i l lustrates a career r ich in 

metaphor ” .    

What is the purpose of  quotat ion marks in a story?  ---   I t  

indicates an insert ion of  some form, usual ly of  someone‟s 10 

words being inserted.  

 So if  I  quoted somebody or quoted a piece in quotat ion 

marks how would one go about at t r ibut ing a piece in quotat ion 

marks?  Is there a formal d irect ive f rom you?  ---   I  would go 

on the convent ion and say that  you would need to acknowl edge 15 

the source and in th is instance you would need to have given 

the URL f rom which you drew the text .  

 Right ,  so the issue is the manner in which the piece was 

at t r ibuted,  not  the fact  that  i t  was not at t r ibuted?  ---   

At t r ibut ion would require a naming of  the source,  t rue 20 

at t r ibut ion.  

 So I am just a bi t  confused because is the issue the 

source or is the issue the correct  at tr ibut ion of  the piece?  ---   

Both. 

 Both?  ---   The issue is that  the piece did not  meet our 25 



MR LEWIS 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

383 A DEAN 

 

20.01.2010/15:09-17:08/LL / . . .  

standards due to i ts heavy use of  mate r ia l  f rom an onl ine si te.  

The at t r ibut ion was merely a part  of  i t  not  meeting our 

standards,  but  my discomfort  with the piece, part icular ly at  

launch, was that  I  wanted People‟s Post to have or iginal ,  f resh 

journal ism and not re ly to th is extent  on mater i a l  f rom other 5 

sources.   I t  was one of  standards.  

 I  do not bel ieve you have answered the quest ion, 

because the quest ion I  am asking is not  the meri ts of  the 

piece, whether the piece was good enough or bad enough.  

The issue is was the quote in quotat ion ma rks f rom an onl ine 10 

biography, was i t  at t r ibuted to an onl ine biography i l lustrat ing 

a career r ich in metaphor or not?  ---   There is no clear,  I  

would say in my judgment,  there is no clear l ink between the 

statement that ends with a fu l l  stop and the succe eding 

paragraphs that are placed with in quotat ion marks,  but  there is 15 

no clear l ink between the quoted mater ia l  and whichever onl ine 

biography you were drawing that mater ia l  f rom.  In my 

judgment i t  was insuf f ic ient.   There was no source at t r ibut ion.  

 Ms Dean, you accused me of  p lagiar ism, is that  not 

correct?  ---   Borderl ine plagiar ism, yes.  20 

 And in order to support  a charge of  p lagiar ism there are 

very c lear guidel ines la id out  by the company, is that  not 

correct?  ---   That is t rue.  

 Could we perhaps have a look at  those guidel ines?  I t  

would be in the appl icant ‟s bundle of  documents,  the f i rst 25 
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bundle,  pages 8 to 19:  Ethical  code for reporters, 

photographers and graphic art ists of  Die Burger.   Ms Dean, is 

i t  not  correct  that  p lagiar ism is a d ismissib le o f fence at  Media 

24?  ---   I t  is  s ince 2006, the precedent was set .  

 M‟Lord ,  I  bel ieve there is a –  oh,  here we go.  On page 5 

11,  art ic le 1.2,  there are one, two, three, four,  f ive points in 

terms of  the guidelines at Media 24.   Ms Dean, was there clear 

credi t  given for the mater ia l  that  was used?  ---   No. 

 Why do you say that?  ---   Your URL as a source was not 

included. 10 

 Ms Dean, is i t  the norm at  Media 24 to use URL‟s as 

sources?  ---   Yes.  I f  you use any external mater ia l  in your 

work you need to at t r ibu te the source or give i t  att r ibut ion and 

the standard is for onl ine use to give the reader the reference 

f rom where you drew the mater ia l ,  as you would say Peter 15 

Smith says,  you would say according to th is URL, giving the 

address, and then you have given t he clear at t r ibut ion.  

 Ms Dean, what is the purpose of  a press re lease?  ---   

There are many purposes of  press re leases.  The purpose 

would be to communicate something to a news room that  you 20 

would l ike them to include in their  media.  

 Is i t  considered the  norm to –  i f  you use a piece f rom a 

press re lease –  to at t r ibute i t  to a press re lease?  ---   There is 

that  suggest ion that  that  be done, but  i t  is  not  convent ional 

pract ice and i t  is  overachievement in the category of  25 
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at t r ibut ion of  sources because i t  is  common pract ice to draw 

mater ia l  f rom press re leases, a l though i t  is  poor journal ism.  

 I f  there was no other source of  informat ion would a 

journal ist  be forced to quote a press re lease?  ---   Yes.  

 Isn‟ t  the fact  that  the accusat ion that you have level led  at 5 

me has absolute ly no basis in fact  because the issue is one of  

general  usage?  Is i t  general  usage when quot ing for instance 

a biography, whether i t  is  a press re lease, whether that  press 

re lease is on a piece of  paper or on a fax or whether i t  is 

p laced onl ine as a resource,  is i t  not general  usage to say the, 10 

in  broad terms, that  th is person‟s biography or that  person‟s 

story for instance?   Is i t  not  a general  accepted norm?  ---   

Yes,  but  can I …(intervent ion)  

 Ja?  ---   May I  ask Mr Lewis quest ions?   Do you submit 

that  the onl ine source was a press re lease as one would 15 

understand i t  general ly?  

 I t  was tendered by the press agent of the musician Jimmy 

Dludlu,  by the name of  Chris Siren placed i t  onl ine as a 

resource to use for journal ists.  

COURT:  You know, i t  is  not  a matter of ,  Ms Dean, of  you 20 

asking quest ions and now you, Mr Lewis,  answering i t  f rom the 

Bench.  Why don‟t  you just  put  the quest ion to her,  namely that 

does she know or does she not know whether or not  th is 

part icular onl ine reference const i tutes a press re lease or not . 

And that  is the l ine of  quest ioning I  th ink you should proceed 25 
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wi th.  

MR LEWIS:  Al l  r ight ,  a l l  r ight .   That is,  yes.   Ms Dean, were 

you aware that  the informat ion had been tendered by the press 

agents of  the musician concerned?  ---   No and i t  is  a lso not  a 

standard assumption to make because press re leases are 5 

usual ly sent d irect ly to a recip ient  as opposed to being lef t  

onl ine. 

 Right  and as the recip ient ,  as the journal ist  concerned, 

surely that  is something that  would have –  i t  would have 

crossed my desk, i t  would have somehow come to me and I 10 

would have decided whether or not  to use i t  to substant iate the 

or to create a new story.   Is that  not  correct?  ---   I  would also 

have decided whether or not to accept that as wo rthy of  our 

standards and whether or not  to publ ish i t .  

 So isn‟ t  what you are saying real ly that  i t  is  not  an issue 15 

of  p lagiar ism, i t  is  an issue of  the manner in which the i tem 

was at t r ibuted?  ---   I t  is  not  an issue of  p lagiar ism.  You were 

not charged under the discip l inary code with p lagiar ism. I t  was 

a matter of  not  meet ing our standards.  

 Is your job not as an editor to f i l l  in  for a sub -editor when 20 

there is no other sub-editor avai lable?  ---   I  would have to do 

that .  

 Right .   And …(intervent ion)  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  sorry,  might I  just  –  before he 

carr ies on –  there is no evidence that  has been placed before 25 
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th is court  which says that  what appears at  page 24 of  the 

bundle is a press re lease or anything akin to a press re lease 

which would ent i t le  anybody to go and cut  and paste f rom i t  

wi thout in any way impact ing on the inte l lectual  property of  the 

author‟s of  that website.   In other words …(intervent ion)   5 

COURT:  When you say page 24, 24 of  which bundle?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Of  what has been put to the witness of  

…(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Yes, I  know.  No, I  got  that , but  …(intervent ion)   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Of the respondent ‟s bundle.   In other words 10 

what is being put is that  the cut t ing and paste,  I  am assuming 

he is saying ( indist inct -microphone of f )  f rom page 24.  But I  

am not even sure where the paragraphs are,  but  when he gave 

his evidence there was no basis la id for the quest ion which is  

the submission which is now being put,  namely that  i t  was 15 

permissib le for me to cut  and paste f rom that  website because 

that  is a website which is  there for the publ ic at  large to go 

and cut  and paste without obtain ing the permission of  the 

or iginal  authors of  the content.  

MR LEWIS:  Sorry,  i f  I  may?  Surely the respondent is aware of  20 

the not ion of  fa ir  use.   ---   Yes.  

 You are aware of  i t?  Could you perhaps expla in to the 

court  what fa ir  use is?  ---   Fai r  use is as you referred to using 

extracts f rom press re leases in art ic les.  

 Right .   So regardless of  where the –  what the or iginal  of  25 
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the quotat ions were,  I  would be with in my r ights as a journal ist 

to make fa ir  use of  those pieces.   Is that not  correct?  ---   I t  is  

and I  would be wi th in my r ights as an editor to re ject certain 

p ieces I  fe l t  for certa in reasons did not  meet the standards I 

set  for the publ icat ion.  5 

 Ms Dean, isn‟ t  what you are referr ing to the idea of  the 

editor ia l  prerogat ive that  regardless of  the meri ts of  the piece 

you have the r ight  to re ject  such a piece for whatever reason? 

 ---   I  would state the reason as I  d id to you. I  am not 

comfortable wi th whole chunks of  text  being taken f rom an 10 

onl ine source without c lear at t r ibut ion.  You may di f fer on the 

point .  I  made the decis ion based on my standards.   Another 

edi tor may have decided dif ferent ly.  

 Ms Dean, surely i f  there was a problem with the stor y 

your d iary would have ref lected an issue of  content or an issue 15 

of  that  there was a problem with the report ing or the way David  

was behaving in terms of  h is content,  wri t ing content to the 

company.  Surely that  would have been …(intervent ion)   - --   I t  

is  inappropriate to make assumpt ions about what my diary 

would ref lect .  20 

 Right .   So you re jected the –  you re jected the story for 

your own editor ia l reasons.  Is that not correct?  ---   Which I 

shared with you in showing you the paragraphs taken word for 

word f rom an onl ine source without c lear at t r ibut ion.  

 And I  expla ined to you that  I  had interviewed Chris Si ren 25 
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and I  had spoken to h im and there was actual ly a paragraph 

preceding the, th is quotat ion f rom an onl ine biography.  I t  says 

here:   Siren expla ins.   There is a quotat ion.   Is that  not  a 

quotat ion? 

COURT:  Sorry,  I  do not know - where are you referr ing  to? Is 5 

th is page 24? 

MR LEWIS:  Just  immediately pr ior to the –  on the page 23.  

COURT:  Of what? 

MR LEWIS:  Of the …(intervent ion)   

COURT :   Respondent ‟s bundle? 10 

MR LEWIS:  Respondent ‟s bundle.  

COURT:  Okay, th is is the Jimmy Dludlu art ic le rather than the 

source of  the quote,  is that  correct?  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  And just  take me to the paragraph?  15 

MR LEWIS:  I t  is  immediately preceding th is p iece.  There is 

actual ly a l ine through i t .   I t  starts:   Siren expla ins 

…(intervent ion)   

COURT:  I t  is  r ight  at  the top of  the fourth column.  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, are these Chris Siren‟s words?  - --   20 

Yes, but that  too –  and I  don‟t  have the documentat ion here –  

that  too was taken f rom an onl ine source.  

 Ms Dean, you must be famil iar with the arts and 

enterta inment industry?  ---   I  am. 

 You are?  ---   To a degree.  25 
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 Who owns the website,  www.music.org.za?  ---   That I  

can‟t  answer.  

 Is th is not  in fact Chris Siren‟s  own website?  ---   You 

could answer that .  

 Right ,  so you are penal is ing me merely because Chris  5 

Siren does not have the t ime to wri te f lowery press re leases 

about h is,  one of  his art ists,  and you are penal is ing me for that 

fact .   - --   I  am not penal is ing you at the moment for anything.   

What we were referr ing to is a problem I  had with the qual i ty 

standard of  the art ic le that you submit ted at  the t ime and you 10 

did not  of fer the informat ion you are of fer ing now, w hich we 

may have then discussed. You of fered to do a rewri te of  the 

art ic le.  No penal isat ion fo l lowed th is.  

 Isn‟ t  the problem the fa i lure of  edi toria l  Media 24 to keep 

up with the technology of  the day and age?  ---   Mr Lewis,  in 15 

an editor ia l  environment you are f ree to prof fer the informat ion 

you have on sourcing informat ion and how you obtain th at  and 

in d iscussion you are able to make that  contr ibut ion and in 

ra is ing problems around content,  as I  d id with you, you were 

f ree to argue your point  and you may have had the opportuni ty 20 

to convince me.  

 So even though I  was able to –  I  was amenable to giving 

you the,  provid ing you with the sources of  the informat ion and 

the only problem that you can determine is my fa i lure to 

st ipulate the exact  URL r ight  down to the last  digi t ,  you 25 
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re jected the story.   ---   Two points:  I  would have preferred 

your own or iginal  work as opposed to re lying heavi ly on 

someone else‟s work,  a lbei t  through the medium of  what you 

term a press re lease.  I  feel  i t  is  better qual i ty journal ism than 

having to fa l l  back on someone else‟s labour.   So i t  is  not 5 

merely the at t r ibut ion.   At t r ibut ion would have been a plaster 

to a wound. I t  would have been better had you craf ted your 

own piece using the informat ion.    

 Ms Dean, how is i t  possib le f or a journal ist  to generate 

new stor ies whi le being in a newsroom? How does a journal ist 10 

…(intervent ion)   - --   I t  is  the wri t ing.  

 How does a journal ist  generate a new story?  ---   

Through sources.  

 Through sources.  ---   And staying in contact  with 

movements on their  beat.  15 

 And if  Media 24 had suppl ied me with an air  t icket to 

Johannesburg I  could have no doubt have attended the SAMA 

awards and given a f i rsthand account.   Isn‟ t  th is „Siren 

expla ins‟  reported speech?  I  am report ing what someone else 

is  te l l ing me.  I  am not …(intervent ion)   - --   You are report ing 20 

in  the case of  „Siren expla ins‟  something that  was quoted 

onl ine without saying „Siren expla ined as reported on www ‟ 

and in the second instance you are taking chunks of  text ,  

somebody else‟s labour,  without f i rst ly giving i t  c lear 

attr ibut ion.   You and I  d if fer on the point  of  whether 25 
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music.org.za is a press re lease or not .   You could have 

i l lustrated clear ly that  i t  is  drawn f rom an onl ine source.   The 

al ternat ive would have been to apply your own labour to your 

own work.  

 Ms Dean, d id you or d id you not issue a style guide?  ---   5 

At  that  point  deal ing with …(intervent ion)   

 W ith the styl ist ic issues that  you have ra ised regarding 

the Jimmy Dludlu story.   -- -   I  can‟ t  recal l  that .   Specif ical ly 

referencing th is? 

 What would have been …(intervent ion) 10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  might I  object  at  th is stage about 

th is l ine of  quest ioning which I  th ink has been hammered into 

the nth degree.   Might I  remind the Court  as to what Mr Lewis‟  

actual version in h is evidence -in-chief  was?  I t  is  not  a case 

about whether or not  the edi tor ‟s reproaches about the 15 

nuances about at t r ibut ion and so on and so forth and 

journal ist ic standards.   Mr Lewis had a simple version which 

was and I  wi l l  read f rom my note:   This re ject ion is 

symptomat ic of  a pol icy of  racia l  d iscr iminat ion in the 

workplace.  In other words,  that is why the art ic le was 20 

re jected.   So we have not been debat ing nor d id I  debate with 

h im nor d id he say in h is evidence -in-chief  that  th is is a case 

about whether or not  Mr Lewis should have been disci p l ined or 

should not  have been discip l ined or should not have been 

chast ised …(intervent ion)   25 
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MR LEWIS:  Your Honour,  sorry,  sorry.  

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  let  Mr Kahanovitz f in ish his argument.  

MR LEWIS:  Al l  r ight .  

COURT:  I  am going to turn to you and you can  reply.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  So I  am submit t ing he has gone as far as 5 

he possib ly could on many occasions on th is point and i t  

cannot real ly be taken any further.  

COURT:  Wel l ,  except  th is Mr Kahanovitz ,  i f  what he is 

at tacking under cross-examinat ion or seeking to do is the 

reason for the re ject ion of  the art ic le given by the witness and 10 

i f  he is able to do that  then one is lef t  wi th what other reason 

was there for the re ject ion and an inference that  is drawn 

around –  that  is the inference that  he wishes to dra w. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I  understand that ,  M‟Lord ,  but  even if  that 

was his l ine he has gone as far as he possib ly could have gone 15 

on putt ing to th is witness now on count less occasions that  she 

could not  have a genuine editor ia l  wel l - founded reason for 

re ject ing the art ic le therefore there must be some other 

reason. 

COURT:  Mr Lewis? 20 

MR LEWIS:  M‟Lord ,  I  am just  t rying to i l lustrate the subject ive 

manner in which th is story was re jected and that  the 

underlying reasons obviously p layed a ro le.   I f  a l l  th is was, 

was a storm in a teacup about a possib i l i ty that  I  might have 

in f r inged Ms Dean‟s subject ive cr i ter ia for at t r ibut ion surely 25 
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the rat ional th ing is to issue a style d irect ive.   Surely the adult  

th ing to do is to issue some kind of  guidel ines and say no, at 

Media 24,  at  the People‟s Post,  th is is what is required,  th is is 

how we do th ings.  In fact ,  we have got a guidel ine,  we got an 

ethical  code, th is is what is required of  you. Please go and 5 

correct  your mistake.   

COURT:  So is that  the quest ion you are put t ing to her? 

MR LEWIS:  The quest ion is:   Why did you not do that?  ---   I  

addressed i t  wi th you as i t  arose in that instance.  Journal ists 

were given copies of  the style guide.   We have of ten presented 10 

ethical  workshops to journal ists and given them tra in i ng and it  

is  part  of  a journal ist ‟s tool  k i t  to know how to use the tool as 

an engineer would know how to do his t rade and th is type of  

problem is addressed as i t  ar ises.  That is my ro le in edi t ing 

the newspaper …(intervent ion)   15 

 Ms Dean, r ight .   ---   Where there could be –  the direct ive 

general ly would be issued where there could be clear problem 

areas broadly that  people need to be made aware of  in 

general ,  but  on the whole th is type of  matter of  at t r ibut ion is 

one that  journal ists are famil iar with in t heir  tool  k i t  as part  of  20 

their  profession and don‟t  real ly need reminding every so of ten 

as i t  is  inherent.  

 Ms Dean …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Mr Lewis.  

MR LEWIS:  Sorry.  25 
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COURT:  How much further are you going to press th is 

part icular issue? 

MR LEWIS:  Wel l ,  I  have to …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  I  do want to remind you that  in your evidence you 

said yourself  that  th is p iece was f rom ready.  5 

MR LEWIS:  Yes,  wel l  th is is what I  am gett ing to.  

COURT:  In fact ,  i f  I  recol lect  the language used by you, i t  was 

vapid and i t  made use of  promo mater ia l .  

MR LEWIS:  Right , th is is what I  am gett ing to.  

COURT:  So is there any …(intervent ion)   10 

MR LEWIS:  Wel l ,  th is is what I  am trying to get  to.  

COURT:  Is there any dispute as to …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  What I  am trying to get  to is:  Isn‟ t  the real  issue 

one of  that  there was not enough t ime given the constra ints 

that  we were working under that  the –  that  ostensib ly you 15 

would have had to f i l l  in  for a sub and there was not another 

sub avai lable because I  had been seconded to the job of  

act ing as a reporter.   Is that not  the problem?  ---   Mr Lewis,  at  

any newspaper a deadl ine is the l ine that  is drawn of  the point 

of  no return.   I f  an art ic le with f laws to th is level  is submitted 20 

at  th is point  in the f low no, the process cannot stop to deal 

with that  level  of  def ic iency.  

 So isn‟ t  the way the deal with th is,  such a problem, is to 

send the story back?  ---   And I  d iscussed i t  wi th you 

…(intervent ion)   25 
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 Which you did not  do.   ---   I  d iscussed i t  wi th you that 

Monday and you began on a rewri te or i f  i t  had not been 

discussed why had you decided to submit a rewri te in which 

you brought Robbie Jansen‟s voice in?  

COURT:  Again, Ms Dean, do not ask him questions.   I  5 

understand you to say that you did d iscuss th is and in fact  he 

went back to rewri te the art ic le.  ---   Yes,  M‟Lord .  

 And that  ( indist inct -knock at  microphone) because he 

produces, th is is the Robbie Jansen art ic le.   ---   Yes,  M‟Lord .  

 I t  is  the second art ic le.   ---   Yes.  10 

 Is that  correct?  ---   Yes,  that is what I  am saying.  

MR LEWIS:  Al l  r ight ,  so as far as you are concerned you did 

not  want to see that  story again?  ---  Not in th is form. 

 Not in that form.  So when i t  was resubmitted to you as 

an interview with Robbie Jansen what was your react ion?  ---   15 

As I  said earl ier I  was at  that  stage rather cr i t ical  of  your work 

due to th is instance and the layout and I  looked at  i t  more 

thoroughly than a lot  of  the other work and in going through i t  

wi th that  in mind I had my doubts about the interview that  you 

quoted in the rewr i te with Robbie Jansen and I  doubted that  i t  20 

had taken place and I  fe l t  i t  would be more responsible of  me 

to f i rst  ver i fy that such an interview had taken place before I  

pr int  the art ic le.  

 Ms Dean, why did you not cal l  Pastor Robertson?  ---   

The events that  fo l lowed on the Tuesday with the meet ing at 25 
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which we agreed the contract would or you would be paid out 

for the remainder of  the contract  and the fact  that  we then did 

not  proceed with th is art ic le under you byl ine af terwards made 

i t  unnecessary.  

 So I  am hearing two di f ferent  th ings.  I  am hearing that  on 5 

the one hand I d id not  give you –  I  d id not  concede to your 

request to provide Robbie Jansen‟s te lephone number and now 

you are te l l ing me that  there is a completely d i f ferent  version 

of  events.   ---   You asked why I  d id not  phone Pastor Glen 

Robertson. 10 

 Right ,  why did you not phone Pastor Glen Robertson?  ---

 Because with Tuesday‟s meet ing and the discont inuat ion of  

the re lat ionship I  was not going to publ ish that art ic le with my 

doubts and I  let  i t  go.  I  d id not  fo l low through and I  cont inued 

on with the th ird edi t ion of  People‟s Post.  15 

 Right .   ---   You were no longer a contr ibut ing journalist 

there. 

 I  th ink we may be missing the dates,  because I  seem to 

recal l  there was a meet ing in which you re quested assistance 

in faking the part  of  a news, as an editor in the know.  20 

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  you have not put  that  to her.    

MR LEWIS:  Wel l,  I  am putt ing i t  to her now. I t  is  in my 

…(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Wel l ,  then just  ask her i f  that  was ever said and  if  

you are going to refer to a meet ing please give us and al low 25 
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the witness to know the date,  the t ime, people who were 

present and the context  so that  –  because we are deal ing with 

events that  took place three years ago.  

MR LEWIS:  I  bel ieve i t  was on the 22n d .  

COURT:  Al l  r ight ,  so.  5 

MR LEWIS:  You requested me –  you asked for my assistance 

in faking,  faking your part  in being the edi tor of  a magazine,  

newspaper in Grassy Park.   ---   Mr Lewis,  can I  ask you just  to 

c lar i fy,  was i t  on the 22 n d  of  May 2006? 

 I  bel ieve so.   ---   There was no such meet ing and on the 10 

22n d  of  May I  was producing the f i rst  edi t ion where we would 

have f ive newspapers going out and I  d id not  get  up from my 

desk unt i l  3:00 that  morning when I  was f in ished with i t .  I  

would certa in ly not  have set  aside t ime to meet with you for a 

topic l ike that  and I  a lso state very conf ident ly that no such 15 

meet ing took place on any other date.  

COURT:  But d id you ever ask the appl icant to fake your part 

of  a newspaper in Grassy Park?  ---   No, M‟Lord .  

MR LEWIS:  So you re jected the Jimmy Dludlu.  You re jec ted 

the Robbie Jansen interview and I  complained to Sedrick 20 

Tal jaard.   ---   Correct ion.   I  phoned Sedrick Tal jaard as you 

returned to your desk and I  reported that  you had just  used 

profane language to management in f ront  of  employees. You 

seemed agitated and asked him for advice on what we should 

do next  and he then said we would meet the next  day.  You did 25 
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not  in i t ia te that  cal l ,  a l though I  do know he asked to speak to 

you and you spoke very loudly that  I  heard down the passage 

some of  the content of  what you were saying to h im.  

 Is i t  not  the case that  you accused me of  p lagiar ism and 

there was a problem with the demographics and the overt ime 5 

and that  you could not  be bothered to f i l l  in  for a subedit or who 

is supposed to sub the art ic le which you were now asking me 

to wri te as a reporter?  ---   No. 

 How is i t  possib le to wri te and sub one‟s own work?  

Surely you were involved in an edi tor ia l  process with your 10 

team. 

COURT:  You know, just  ask the quest ions.   There are about 

four,  there seem to be three or four issues in that quest ion,  so 

break the quest ions down into a qui te s imple quest ion.  So the 

f i rst  one is,  the f i rst  I  understand that  you are asking her 15 

whether she accused you of  p lagiar ism, demog raphics and not 

f i l l ing in.   Al l  r ight  no,  that seems to be one part icular quest ion 

and then the second one is the quest ion as to whether or not i t  

is  possib le to both wr i te an art ic le and subedit  i t .  

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 20 

COURT:  So let us give the witness each  quest ion separately.  

MR LEWIS:  Right ,  sorry Ms Dean, d id you or d id you not 

accuse me of  p lagiar ism?  ---   Mr Lewis,  i f  you had been 

accused of  p lagiar ism there would be a discip l inary process 

that  would have started.  25 
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 Right ,  so …(intervent ion)   - --   What I  had a problem with 

was the qual i ty.  I t  was borderl ine plagiar ism.  We did not 

proceed with any case against you for p lagiar ism.  

 Again the quest ion:  How is i t  possib le to f i l l  in for the 

dut ies of  a reporter at  the same t ime that  one is subbing a 5 

news story?  Surely the two are two contradictory jobs?  ---   Mr 

Lewis,  you asked me previously i f  one person can fu lf i l  the 

same roles and i t  is  common pract ice that  a journal ist is able 

to sub copy and is required to sub their  own copy.  

 Surely the process of  subbing a story involves having a 10 

second pair  of  eyes?  ---   Indeed and that is where a team 

leader/news editor/edi tor would review the work of  a sub or 

journal ist .  

 And were you not that  second pair  of  eyes?  ---   That is 

why I  saw th is on the Sunday and  quest ioned i t .  15 

 So that  was your job essent ia l ly,  was to spot those 

problems and point  them out to whoever i t  was that  i t  

concerned?  ---   Which I  d id do.  

 Which you did,  r ight .   I  then rewrote the Robbie Jansen 

story,  the Jimmy Dludlu story with an inter view f rom, a scoop 20 

for the community paper,  and resubmitted the story in the 

same manner,  in the same, going through the correct  channels 

and your react ion was?  ---   I  could not  put  my name to that 

story …(intervent ion)   

 Did you wri te that  story?  -- -   O r  the People‟s Post‟s 25 
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name. 

 Did you wri te that  story?  ---   No, but  as edi tor in 

a l lowing something to be publ ished I  am endorsing i t .   That is 

my ro le and I was not comfortable doing that  unt i l  I  had 

ver i f ied i t .  5 

 So you did not  want to endorse the Robbie Jansen 

interview because you were –  there were issues that  you had.  

You were uncomfortable?  ---   Yes.  

 Right .   Ms Dean, you are a journal ist .   - --   Yes.  

 You studied journal ism.  ---   To a point .  10 

 To a point?  ---   Uh, academical ly to a point .  

 Academic you got a degree …(intervent ion)   - --   I t  is  

Engl ish and Psychology.  

 Engl ish and Psychology.  Are you aware of  the problem of  

newsroom censorship?  ---   Yes. 15 

 Would you not th ink that  perhaps your re ject ion of  my 

story could be,  would be seen as an at tem pt to oppress the 

journal ist  concerned?   ---   I f  an edi tor merely had to steer 

c lear of  oppression then stor ies such as the Transnet sale of  

land at  the Waterf ront  that  was a Sunday Times‟ f ront  page 20 

story and turned out to not be t rue at  a l l ,  would be com mon 

place in South Af rica.   Editors are meant to ver i fy facts and if  

in  doubt they need to f ind out .  

 But you must admit  your paper is not  of  the same i lk or 

cal ibre as the Sunday Times.  ---   And never wi l l  i t  be i f  there 25 
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are th ings that we publ ish that  we ourselves are not 

comfortable with.  

 And that  you are unl ikely to publ ish a Transnet exposé in 

the People‟s Post.   - --   We could do something on a smal ler 

level  that  would be the same and if  we internal ly,  par t icular ly 5 

at  management level ,  are not  convin ced about the veraci ty or 

the qual i ty of  our content we should not  publ ish without 

ver i fying that .  

 Is i t  not  the case that  the community press in South 

Af r ica have been dumbed-down?  Nobody wants the community 10 

press yapping at  our feet?  ---   I t  is  subject ive.   There has 

been no study to prove i t .  

 Is i t  not  a case that  you are just  a smal l  cog in a large 

organisat ion that has an object ive or an agenda?  ---   That 

would be opin ion for a let ters page 2(?)  and not a factual  story 15 

as an art ic le.  I t  is  subject ive.  

 Is i t  not  the case that  the large organisat ion that  you are 

in essent ia l ly has an agenda which is to not rock the boat  at 

community level ,  as far as i t  can?  ---   I  have never seen the 

agenda in any annual report  or on any emai l  or in any form 20 

that  I  can conf i rm that  your assert ion has any basis.  

 Are you famil iar with the term expediency?  ---   Indeed I 

am. 

 Was i t  not  an expedient course of  act ion that  you took in 

not  want ing to of fend anybody?  ---   Please clar i fy with  25 
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reference to what act ion I  took. 

 You were worr ied that  i f  you publ ished a story that  was 

sl ight ly controvers ia l  that  you would be dismissed.  ---   I  was 

worr ied that  i f  I  publ ished a story that  had the def ic iencies of  

what you presented to me, that  was my concern.   What 5 

controversy?  I  have not ment ioned controversy at  a l l .  

 Is i t  not  safe to say that  the only def ic iencies in the 

Robbie Jansen story are in fact  the words of  Robbie Jansen?  

The only th ing that  is of  any problem in the art ic le are the 

words of  the man himself .   - --   Not  the words,  but  the dynamic 10 

of  somebody who is in the industry in our newspaper,  af ter h is 

producer says don‟t  ta lk,  being convinced by yoursel f  to lay 

bare exact ly what he feels about the industry.  That is the 

problem, not  the words,  but  the dynamic.  

 Right ,  surely the dynamics of  a community paper are 15 

such that  someone l ike Robbie Jansen would consider th is a 

normal d iscourse,  a normal conversat ion that  he would have to 

anybody l iv ing in Grassy Park?  ---   That would have been the 

point  of  my making the phone cal l  to ver i fy that  he had said 

these th ings to you.  20 

 Ms Dean, are you qual i f ied or not  to be the edi tor of  at 

least  four edi t ions in previously d isadvantaged areas of  Cape 

Town?  ---   My company th inks so.  

 Do you socia l ise with people of  colour?  ---   I  barely 

socia l ise.  25 
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 Right ,  because you have made some start l ing al legat ions 

against  me. You have said –  to add insul t  to in jury you have 

said essent ia l ly that  my contr ibut ion to the ant i -Apartheid 

struggle in the f ie ld of  journal ism is whol ly subject iv e.   Can I 

ask you …(intervent ion)   5 

COURT:  When did the witness say that?  

MR LEWIS:  This is in the,  wel l ,  i t  is  in the respondent ‟s 

documents on i tem 60.  

COURT:  Right ,  ja,  i t  real ly is qui te important .   I f  you want to 

make an at t r ibut ion to the witness … ( intervent ion)   10 

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  You must say i t ,  what she did,  and if  i t  is what the 

respondent says you should dist inguish.  

MR LEWIS:  I t  must be in the pleadings.   I t  is  on the last  page 

of  the opposit ion,  the latest amendment that  the 15 

…(interven t ion)   

COURT:  What page? 

MR LEWIS:  Hm, i f  I  can f ind the not ice of  opposit ion.  Right , 

page 74. 

COURT:  Page 74.  20 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Of the pleadings.  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, are these not your words?   

“ In e i ther event appl icant ‟s c la ims about h is cont r ibut ion 

to the ant i -Apartheid struggle in the f ie ld of  journal ism 25 
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are whol ly subject ive.”  

  - --   I t  is  our response to what you submit.  

 Do you endorse th is posi t ion?  ---   I  bel ieve,  yes,  your 

contr ibut ion is subject ive and the dif ference between 

subject ive and object ive would be a ver i f icat ion.  5 

 Do you bel ieve that  you have some kind of  d ivine r ight  to 

ru le as a white person?  ---   No.  

 Do you not perhaps bel ieve that  you are moral ly superior 

to those readers l iv ing in Lansdowne, Grassy Park, Retreat 

and Athlone?  ---   No.  10 

 Do you not perhaps th ink that  they would perceive the 

Jansen interview very d i f ferent ly f rom your v iews, informed as 

they are by an educat ion background in Bloemfontein?  ---   

They might view i t  d if ferent ly as a reader to how I  viewed i t  as 

an editor.  I  could back that  up.  I  would look at  an art ic le 15 

di f ferent ly and I  look at  d if ferent  th ings in an art ic le than what 

a reader would do,  but  whether or not  our cul tural  f ramework 

gives us di f ferent  interpretat ions of  the same piece is 

someth ing that  I  would l ike you to possib ly prove through a 

submission of  some study.  20 

 Right,  wel l ,  isn‟ t  a fact  that  the cul tural  f ramework in 

which we are having th is d iscussion is a very d i f ferent  one 

than the cul tural  f ramework that  we would be having the sa me 

discussion in a newsroom –  I  have worked in many newsrooms.  

I  have worked in newsrooms where there are no boundaries 25 
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separat ing white f rom black.   Surely those f rameworks that 

have been suppl ied by your heri tage as a white South Af r ican 

and by the company which informed that  her i tage, surely those 

are the boundaries and barr iers that  we need to be breaking 

down in th is day and age?   5 

COURT:  I  do not know what the quest ion is.  

MR LEWIS:  The quest ion that  I  am asking her with regards to 

the cul tural  f ramework that  she is endorsing,  she is c la iming 

that  she has some kind of  unique …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  She has not c la imed any of  that.  10 

MR LEWIS:  Is she not? 

COURT:  Mr Lewis …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Al l  r ight .  

COURT:  I f  you are going to say that  she  has cla imed i t  then 

please te l l  us chapter and verse where she has done so,  but 15 

her evidence today I  have not heard her c la im that .  

MR LEWIS:  I  thought I  heard,  I  thought I  heard her saying 

…(intervent ion)   

COURT:  ( Indist inct -speaking simultaneously) that  she does 

not th ink she has the divine r ight  to ru le.   I  have heard her say 20 

that  she does not th ink she is superior to the readership.  

MR LEWIS:  Okay.  

COURT:  And so please, you know …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  I f  you are going to put  these  cla ims you must say 25 
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where they are made.  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, the respondent,  your benefactor,  your 

pr incipal ,  seems at  pains to deny the existence of  the struggle.  

Why is that?  ---   I  need you to conf i rm that  they are at  pains 

to deny the existence of  a  struggle because I  d if fer in my 5 

opin ion on that .  

 I  can quote chapter and verse.  

COURT:  But where does i t  take you, th is quest ion?  

MR LEWIS:  Where does i t  take us? 

COURT:  And how does th is witness assist  the matter? 10 

MR LEWIS:  I  would bel ieve that  given the opportuni ty to make 

amends for the terr ib le and atrocious past that  Ms Dean would 

avai l  herself  of  that  opportuni ty,  that  i f  she was party to 

informat ion such that there were aggrieved part ies in the 

community,  aggrieved at  her edi tor ial  d irect ive,  t hat  she would 15 

of fer some sympathy for instance to the very community that 

she is c la iming some kind of  academic knowledge, some kind 

of  professional basis for being in contro l ,  being the edi tor, 

being the one making the decis ions as to what t ranspires in 

that  community.  20 

COURT :   Why don‟t  you just  ask her that  quest ion?  

MR LEWIS:  I  bel ieve I  have.  

COURT:  No, you have not.    

MR LEWIS:  Not? 

COURT:  Let  us just  say,  wi l l  you ask her i f  she was party to 25 
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the informat ion about aggrieved part ies and maybe you ca n te l l  

her who the aggrieved part ies are and secondly then you can 

ask her i f  she of fered some sympathy and so i f  those are the 

quest ion you want to ask please ask them.  

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, am I  the only one that  has a problem 5 

with …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  No, no,  ask the quest ion.   

MR LEWIS:  Sorry,  the quest ion.  

COURT:  Are you dropping those quest ions?  Mr Lewis 

…(intervent ion)   10 

MR LEWIS:  No. 

COURT:  Look at me.  I  run th is court .   You do not ask a 

quest ion when I  am addressing you.   Do you understand that?  

Now are you dropping the two questions that I  suggested that 

you separate out  and put to Ms Dean or are you proceeding on 15 

a new l ine of  enquiry?  

MR LEWIS:  I  wish to actual ly ask Ms Dean whether she has 

been party to any informat ion at  boardroom lev el that  might –  I  

suppose i t  could be considered pr ivi leged informat ion,  but 

informat ion of  an edi tor ia l  nature in terms of  pol icy in the 20 

company.  ---   No, I  am not,  not  pr ivy to i t .   I  am far f rom the 

boardroom. 

 No-one has to ld you …(intervent ion)   - --   At  my level .  

 No-one has to ld you th is is what we expect f rom you?  ---

 I  do have a job descript ion that  sets out  tasks I  am expected 25 
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to del iver on.  

 And who do you report  to?  ---   Russel Wolmarans.  

 So you are saying that  you have got absolute edi tor ia l  

f reedom to do pretty much what you want?  ---   I  do and then I 

would have to face the consequences of  those choices too.  5 

 Right .   And is i t  not  t rue that  you have chosen a pol icy of  

expediency as opposed to grappl ing with the issues that  you 

are conf ronted on a dai ly basis?  ---   No, that  is fa lse.  

 Is that  fa lse?  ---   That is fa lse.  

 So the Robbie Jansen story would not  have struck you as 10 

an opportuni ty to conf ront  issues of  nat ion bui ld ing and heal ing 

in the community?  I t  would not have struck you as a n 

opportuni ty?  ---   Not d irect ly.   I t  dealt  wi th a music award and 

his opin ions of  that  music award.   I t  d id not  d irect ly address 

what you suggested could …(intervent ion)   15 

 When, when …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Let  the witness f in ish,  Mr Lewis.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  Sorry.  

COURT:  I  mean, you interrupt the witness,  you interrupt  my 

abi l i ty to record what she is saying.   Now you have got as far 20 

as that  i t  dealt  wi th the music awards and then you were 

making some statement about opin ion.   ---   Mr Lewis asked if  i t  

was not an opportuni ty for nat ion build ing.  

COURT:  Nat ion bui ld ing.  

MR LEWIS:  Yes.   ---   And I  said that  was not the direct  25 
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subject  matter of  the art ic le.  The subject  matter was the music 

awards,  so not  d irect ly.  

 So in your career as a journal ist  th is  is not  a story that 

you would consider unusual?  ---   No.  

 No.   So the history of  these people have no bearing on 5 

what t ranspires at an edi tor ia l  meet ing or …(intervent ion)   - --   

But I  d id c lar ify the art ic le f rom my point of  view was one of  

h is views on the music industry,  not  h is h istory or who he is as 

a member of  the group you are referring to.  

 So you were worr ied that  h is views would be used 10 

against  h im?  ---   No, I  was worr ied that the person who had 

wri t ten the story may not have had the interview with h im. 

 Oh, so you dispute whether or not  I  actual ly interviewed 

Robbie Jansen at a l l?  ---   That is why I  asked you for h is 

number.  15 

 And when I gave you Pastor Robertson‟s number why on 

earth would I  have given you that  number?  ---   At  that  stage of  

me gett ing the number f rom you, the next  day you were no 

longer in our employment and I  certa in ly was not going to run 

the art ic le,  so I  moved along with the next  edi t ion.  20 

 So you had already wri t ten me of f?  ---   No, at  the t ime of  

hold ing back on the art i c le I  needed to do that  to ver i fy that  

the interview had taken place.  

 Which you did not do.   ---   Not on Monday on deadl ine.  

We had a newspaper to br ing out and I had already made the 25 
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decis ion not to run that  art ic le.  I t  was not going to be pending 

conf i rmat ion that  Monday af ternoon. I t  was put aside.  I  had 

communicated to you I  was not running the art ic le.   You were 

clear ly unhappy and expressed i t  wi th many profani t ies.  I  d id 

not  go back to the art ic le that  day.  The next  day we had the 5 

meet ing.  You were  no longer in our employment f rom then on 

or would not  be at the of f ice f rom then on and so I  d id not  run 

the art ic le af ter that  and I  a lso did not  fo l low through on the 

phone cal l .  

 So ostensib ly I  had already been f i red.   ---   No, I  had 10 

decided to not use the art ic le.  The next  day you signed a fu l l  

and f inal  set t lement.  

 Which you cannot f ind.   ---   No, we are not  re lying on 

that .  

 Which is missing,  which you are not  re lying on.  ---   No.  15 

 Because I  am interested to see how much you are 

actual ly re lying on to substant iate your own test imony. You 

have thrown al l  sorts of  th ings at  me, but  today you walked in 

and your character isat ion of  the evaluat ion meet ing was that 

no,  i t  was just  absolute chaos.   That was the reason that  you 20 

could not  remember anything.   ---   I t  d id become chaot ic at  a 

point .  You became very agi tated.  I t ,  there was no real 

narrat ive to i t  af ter a whi le.  You were very agi tated,  energet ic.  

There was no order.  You would not  answer quest ions and you 

also said th ings in response that  were no t re levant.  25 
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 Is i t  not the fact  that  we were ta lk ing at  cross purposes? 

 ---   I  don‟t  know why the meet ing went that  way, but  I  do know 

f rom my point  of  observat ion there was a lot of  aggression and 

you were very worked up and instead of  answering the 

quest ions direct ly you came with counter accusat ions.  5 

 So the Jimmy Dludlu art ic le,  the Robbie Jansen art ic le 

had nothing to do with the evaluat ion meet ing.   Is th is what 

you are t rying to te l l  me?  ---   I t  d id come in.   Your behaviour 

was the reason the meet ing had been cal led.  The art ic le had 

sparked that .  10 

 So there was an evaluat ion meet ing at  which the issue of  

the overt ime arose?  ---   No. 

 Was that not  the subject  of  the evaluat ion meet ing?  ---   

No, the evaluat ion meet ing was at  9:00,  as you term i t ,  the  

evaluat ion meet ing,  and the overt ime ta lk in my diary was 15 

between myself  and Sedrick Tal jaard about the Saturday 

versus the Sunday product ion.  

 Was there not  a problem with a period in which I  had 

worked 14 hour shi f t  and that  there had been a seven day 

week, two sequels,  two periods in which I  was working back to 20 

back seven days a week 14 hours a day on three days? Was 

not a subject  of  the evaluat ion meet ing?  ---   You made a lot  of  

c la ims there,  but  what I  can say is that  you had never ra ised in 

any formal way a gr ievance around your working hours or the 

number of  days you worked.  25 
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 So there was no problem with the working t ime?  ---   I  

can say we al l  worked long and hard hours those days.  What 

you are stat ing very fast ,  I  can‟ t  keep up with how many hours  

on how many days.  Tuesdays you wi l l  recal l  we were of f .  There 

was no work to be done on a Tuesday.  We certa in ly d id not  5 

work 14 hour days on a Wednesday or a Thursday.  In the 

beginning we had system problems, but  you never ra ised in 

any formal way a gr ievance about the working hours and with i t  

being a ro l l -out  of  four new t i t les and us having system 

problems we al l  put  long hours in to get  the job done and I 10 

th ink by and large with everyone on board i t  was done in a 

good spir i t .  

 Ms Dean, how many people were at  the evaluation 

meet ing?  ---   I t  was you, myself ,  Sedrick Tal jaard and Warren 

Charles.  I t  was four.  15 

 Right .   What d id Warren Charles have to say?  ---   In the 

beginning we asked you about your CV and your background 

because we had had doubts based on the experience we had 

had with your layout and the qual i ty of  your wri t ing.  We then 

moved onto the point  of  what had happened the day before 20 

around the inappropriateness the behaviour at  the workplace 

and with management and as I  say at  a point  the –  you were 

qui te worked up and you would not  answer the quest ions and 

what Warren Charles said and what you said I  cannot repeat 

verbat im, i t  having happened three years ago …(intervent ion)   25 
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 Could you perhaps assist  the court?  What was the 

content of  the d iscussion between Warren Charles and myself? 

 ---   Between Warren Charles and yoursel f?  

 Yes.   ---   I  know West End came up and …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  West End?  ---   Ja, West End is a c lub in Rylands.  5 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Sorry,  just  say that  again  to me?  ---   West End. 

 Yes.   ---   I t  is  a n ight  c lub in Rylands. And I  th ink i f  you 

are asking me to give some sense of  the meet ing I  can 

comment themat ical ly a long the theme, but  not  with each word 10 

…(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Was the theme, a l l  r ight ,  was the theme not the 

manner in which I  observed the Fr iday night ,  my Jewish,  me 

being a Jew?  Was that  not  the theme?  ---   I  cannot conf i rm 

that .  I  do recal l  you ment ioning West End in Rylands and you 15 

ment ioned a lot  to prove you had street  cred and we we re 

taken aback at  how that  had come into the conversat ion.   That 

was one point  that  stood out for me, is why do you br ing that 

into the conversat ion.  

 Did Warren Charles not  quest ion me on what I  was 20 

happened to be doing on a Fr iday n ight?  Did he not ques t ion 

me?  ---   I  cannot recal l  that .  

 Did he not interrogate me as to –  and th is is the quest ion 

that  verbat im was:  What am I  doing at  the West End on a 

Fr iday night?  Am I  not  contradict ing myself  as a Jew?  Did he 25 
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not  say those words?  ---   No, I  cannot  conf i rm that.  

 You do not have any memory or recol lect ion?  ---   No, I  

cannot conf i rm that  West End was used in that  context  by 

Warren Charles.  I  know you were saying that  you had street 

cred and you know where West End is.   That, i t  st ruck me as 5 

being inappropriate to what was actual ly a professional 

conversat ion about your conduct …(intervent ion)   

 Right ,  d id –  do you not th ink that  i t  was inappropriate to 

ask me for d irect ions to Manenberg in an evaluat ion meet ing?    

COURT:  Was the quest ion asked?  I  m ean, just p lease 10 

…(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Yes,  he wants to know …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  No, no,  no,  you ask the witness please.  

MR LEWIS:  I  am asking the witness.   ---   Whether the 

quest ion was asked? 15 

 Was i t  not inappropriate to ask that  quest ion?  

COURT:  No, no,  no,  before you ask the appropriateness,  ask 

whether that  question was put to you at  that  meet ing.  

MR LEWIS:  Sorry,  Ms Dean, was the quest ion not put to me 

by Warren Charles?  Did he not want to know where 20 

Manenberg is?  ---   I  cannot recal l  that .   In saying that  I  am 

not saying that  i t  might not  have been asked or that  i t  was 

indeed asked, I  am saying that  I  do not have information in my 

memory bank at  a l l  on that .  

 Did you not want to –  d id you not quest ion me as to my 25 
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part ic ipat ion in an exhib i t ion of  art?  ---   Yes,  we did.  

 You did.   ---   Yes. 

 Ms Dean, I  am just  wondering whether you can perhaps 

remember the sequence of  events that  led to me being 

removed f rom the newsroom.  I  seem to recal l  being 5 

interrogated as to whether or not  I  was a  Jew or a member of  

the Jewish fa i th or what,  what would a Jew be doing at  the 

West End on a Fr iday night .   That was the quest ion that  they 

wanted …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Okay, Mr Lewis,  you are not  giv ing evidence here.  10 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  So the quest ion is just  –  phrase your statement in a 

form of  a quest ion.  

MR LEWIS:  Right.  Ms Dean, d id Warren Charles not  want to 

know what I  was doing at  the West End on a Fr iday night  being 15 

a Jew?   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord  …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  She has answered that  …(intervent ion)   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  As they say in …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Thank you, thank you, Mr Kahanovitz.   She has 20 

answered that  quest ion now three t imes …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Was the,  r ight .  

COURT:  Mr Lewis.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Please do not interrupt  me when I  am ta lk ing to you.  25 
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MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  You have asked her that quest ion now I  th ink at  least 

…(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Okay, a l l  r ight .  

COURT:  Three or four t imes.  5 

MR LEWIS:  I  have asked that  quest ion.  

COURT:  She has answered the quest ion and there is no 

reason for cont inuing to get  the same answer each t ime. She 

has expla ined that  she does not recal l  that  being said,  but 

concedes i t  might have been, as I  understand her to say,  but  10 

she does not recall .  

MR LEWIS:  Right ,  is i t  possib le that  there was some kind of  

conversat ion involving Judaism at  the evaluat ion?    

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  might I  object?  What the witness 

has said on count less occasions,  th ings may have been said at 15 

that  meet ing that  she did not  hear.  

COURT:  Yes, I  know.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  And therefore she cannot unequivocal ly 

say that  something was not said,  so he can put however many 

variat ions on that theme that  he l ikes.  20 

COURT:  Yes, but  now there is a quest ion of  Judaism.  Let  the 

witness answer.   Do  you recal l  an issue of  Judaism being 

ra ised at that  meeting?  ---   No. I  can –  i f  I  am al lowed to? 

 Yes, of  course.  ---   Expla in on the West End reference in 

the meet ing.  What I  do recal l  is  that  Mr Lewis in expla in ing 25 
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that  he had indeed interviewed Robb ie Jansen saying that  he 

had done that  in West End at  the club and that  is how i t  is  

possib le that  West End came into the conversat ion in that 

meet ing.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .   ---   Because we were also asking about 5 

that  art ic le and: Had you interviewed Robbie J ansen?  And you 

cla imed to have done that  in West End.  

 And you wanted to know whether or not  I  had done i t  on 

the Fr iday night  or had I done i t  on the Thursday pr ior the 

week before.   Is that  not  correct?  ---   Because there was a 10 

matter of  the pool car that you had used that  Fr iday night .  

 Right .   ---   But i t  was not around the matter of  Judaism. I t  

was around my doubts st i l l  that  you had actual ly had the 

interview and when –  I  was t ry ing to a lso understand when 

would you have wr i t ten i t ,  when could the i nterview have taken 15 

place and I was aware you had used the pool car on a certa in 

n ight ,  so I  was t rying to understand then did that  coincide with 

where you cla imed or when you cla imed you had been at  West 

End to do the interview.  

 Right .   ---   But i t  was most certa in ly around the interview 20 

of  Robbie Jansen.  

 Right .   ---   Whether or not  i t  had taken place.  

 So was the quest ion not where was I  at  such and such a 

t ime on Friday night?  Was that not  the quest ion?  ---   To 

understand had you actual ly interviewed  Robbie Jansen at 25 
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West End as you had cla imed.  

 Well ,  you were,  r ight .  

COURT:  She has answered to say that  the issue is that  she 

was concerned about whether or not  you had interviewed 

Robbie Jansen.  5 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Al l  r ight .  

MR LEWIS:  And what  were your conclusions?  ---   I  made no 

conclusion.  I  would have had to speak to Pastor Glen 

Robertson, but  the fu l l  and f inal  set t lement was signed. I  d id 10 

not choose to run the art ic le and therefore I  never pursued 

that .  

 So as far as you …(intervent ion)   - --   I t  would not  be wise 

af ter someone is no longer there.  

 So as far as you were concerned you had washed your 15 

hands of  i t .  I  had commit ted some dismissib le of fence.  ---   No, 

the meet ing at  which that  set t lement was s igned was one of  

mutual agreement  … ( intervent ion)   

 Was i t .   - --   And the fact  that  I  had withheld the art ic le 

the day before re lated to the meet ing only in that  your 20 

profani ty and your conduct were cause for concern by 

management.  

 Is i t  not  the t ruth that  i f  there was an issue of  the 

conduct that  there should have been a discip l inary hearing?   

---   I  cannot comment on the choices that  human resources 25 
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and upper management departments take.  

 Is there no oversight ,  is there no legal f ramework in 

which hir ing and f i r ing occurs?  ---   There is  indeed and i t  is 

with in the ambit  of  human resources.  

 Could you perhaps te l l  the court  why Warren Charles no 5 

longer works for Media 24? 

COURT:  What is the re levance of  that?  

MR LEWIS:  The re levance is I  do not bel ieve Warren Charles 

did h is job.  I  do not th ink he was au fa i t  wi th the ru les and 

regulat ions governing the terminat ion of  –  a uni lateral 10 

terminat ion of  the contract .  

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  that  is just  i r re levant.  

MR LEWIS:  Is i t  i r re levant? 

COURT:  Yes. 

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, do you th ink that a quest ion such as 15 

what is your re l igious af f i l ia t ion,  you th ink such a quest ion is 

appropriate in a newsroom?  ---   I t  depends on how the answer 

is  put  to use. I  don‟t  th ink the quest ion i tself  would be 

inappropriate.  We ask each other many th ings as we go 

through dif fer ing levels of  get t ing to know one another.   The 20 

appropriateness or otherwise would be re lated to the use of  

the answer.  

 Would you not consider that  i f  the very next  th ing 

occurred af ter such a quest ion was a dismissal or terminat ion 

of  a contract  that  there would be a basis for d iscr iminat ion?   25 
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COURT:  When was the quest ion?  Are you asking hypothet ical 

…(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  I t  is  a hypothet ical  …(intervent ion )  

COURT:  Quest ion here or is i t  …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  I t  is  a hypothet ic.  5 

COURT:  Hypothetical ly …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  Are you saying to the witness hypothet ical ly 

…(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Hypothet ical ly.  10 

COURT:  I f  such a quest ion was asked and was answered 

…(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Would  i t  be discr iminatory then to d ismiss somebody 

af ter that? 15 

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  Is that  your hypothet ical  quest ion?  

MR LEWIS:  That is the hypothet ical  …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Now what is the re levance of  that  and how can th is 

witness in any way assist  you?  I  am going to ask the witness 20 

to answer,  but  …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  I  am try ing to understand …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  I  am real ly t rying to say to you that  you are going to 

–  th is –  anyway, do you wish to answer i t?  ---   Yes,  i t  would 

be discr iminatory.  25 
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MR LEWIS:  Right .   So you would do everyth ing you can to 

avoid such an act  of  d iscr iminat ion?  ---   Yes.  

 Right  and you would have pol ic ies in p lace and check 

and balances to avoid such eventual i t ies?  ---   Yes.  

 And even if  there was a dispute  of  whatever nature,  even 5 

i f  i t  was over the use of  profani ty or the wearing of  an ear 

p iercing or a head dress,  your company would have some kind 

of  a p lan in p lace so that  d iscr imination could not happen?  ---   

I  would take profani ty out  of  the category of  an i tem that  you 

can discr iminate for or against . I t  is  a matter of  conduct 10 

…(intervent ion)   

 Right ,  in what.   ---   But in terms of  other matters of  

d iscr iminat ion there would be checks and balances and 

pol ic ies and the l ike.  

 Now, Ms Dean, what is your  pol icy on the use of  15 

blasphemy?   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  I  object .   I t  is  not  a ( indist inct -not 

speaking in microphone) case.  

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  what do you have to say?  

MR LEWIS:  M‟Lord ,  the witness has accused me of  using 20 

profani ty.  

COURT:  Wel l ,  the profani ty she has used, that  she has 

indicated so far,  is …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  No, I  am just  t rying to determine …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Is terminology that  is qui te far away f rom blasphemy.  25 
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MR LEWIS:  Right,  I  am just  t rying to determine whether sh e 

understands the dif ference between obs cenity for instance and 

profani ty,  the use of  foul  language. They are di f ferent 

…(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Wel l ,  then just ask her.  ---   Have I  used the wrong 5 

term to descr ibe what you said to me?  Should I  have said you 

had used an obscenity as opposed to profaning the name of  a 

dei ty possib ly?  Is that  the point?   

 Whoo.  ---   I  am trying to understand your quest ion.  

 I  am trying to understand your response. You said that 10 

you used the word f l ip ,  was i t ,  ef f ing?   I f  a person use the 

word ef f ing th is or ef f ing that ,  would that  be in your book 

profane?  ---   Mr Lewis,  I  chose not to say the word in fu l l .  

 Right .   ---   But I  need to c lar i fy to the court ,  I  was not 

then verbat im repeat ing what he had said.  I  had chosen to  15 

leave out a part  of  the words.  

COURT:  Yes, i t  is  f ine.   I  th ink we al l  understand what you 

intended and the quest ion simply is th is:   You used the word 

profani ty and the quest ion is, as I  understand i t ,  am I ,  is  that 

the proper term should have been obsc enity? 20 

MR LEWIS:  Oh no, I  am, I  am.  

COURT:  Is real ly your argument that  she had used the wrong 

term profani ty rather than obscenity.  

MR LEWIS:  I  th ink she has used the wrong profani ty.  I  am just 

t rying to …(intervent ion)   25 
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COURT:  Al l  r ight ,  wel l  f ine.  

MR LEWIS:  Figure out  what was said.  

COURT:  We do not have to have the descript ion. The quest ion 

simply is we know what words she says were used.  

MR LEWIS:  Because in my version of  events any profani ty 5 

that  might have occurred happened af ter the terminat i on of  the 

contract . I  might have ut tered the word f l ip ,  r ight ,  or ef f  you, 

af ter I  had already been physical ly removed f rom the premises. 

Is that  what you are doing is creating a sequence of events 

that  does not actual ly add up.  You have a diary entry tha t  is 10 

completely d if ferent  to what you …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  p lease do not argue with the witness.  Just 

put  quest ions to her.  You have put to her that  your use of  the 

word ef f  of f  or whatever the case may be took place af ter you 

were removed f rom the premises.   Just  put  i t  to her.  15 

MR LEWIS:  I  am putt ing i t  to you that  th is might have been 

the version of  events that  you have a habit  of  lying,  that  you 

l ied about numerous occasions var ious incidents where there 

is evidence to support  and substant iate my version of  events.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  there is wel l  establ ished case law 20 

that before you put to a witness that  they are lying you must 

establ ish a basis for i t .  

COURT:  Basis for doing that ,  ja.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  And that  has not happened here.  

MR LEWIS:  Your Honour,  I  have no further quest ions.25 
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RE-EXAMINATION BY MR KAHANOVITZ:   Thank you.  Ms 

Dean, just  a handful  of  th ings.   On th is quest ion about what in 

the contract  and the annexure and so on and so forth were you 

part  of  a conspiracy to put  a f raudulent  copy of  a contract ,  an 

employment contract ,  before th is court?  ---   No, I  was not.  5 

 Now you had a lengthy debate about what seems to me 

the quest ion of  p lagiar ism on the one hand and poor qual i ty 

journal ism on the other.  I  just  want to ask you about the 

quest ion of  what would fa l l  into the category of  poor qual i ty 

journal ism that  an edi tor might re ject  so that we can 10 

understand the di f ference and what we are t rying to 

understand is when is i t  permissib le i f  ever to go and l i f t  large 

chunks f rom somebody else‟s informat ion on the internet.  I f ,  

and again,  sorry,  I  am going to have also just  do with a  

hypothet ical  hear, i f  you were to ask someone to wri te an 15 

obituary of  a deceased person for the People‟s Post and they 

cut and paste an obituary f rom the Dai ly Telegraph, but  they 

at t r ibuted i t  to the Dai ly Telegraph at  the beginning of  the 

art ic le,  but  the rest  of  the art ic le is just  copied of f  another s i te, 

is that  acceptable?  ---   No, that  is not  acceptable because the 20 

at t r ibut ion needs to f low through so that the informat ion that 

you are drawing f rom the other source is l inked to that  other 

source cont inuously and not just  by way of  introduct ion.   There 

needs to be no doubt in the reader‟s mind that  the informat ion 

that they are deal ing with stems f rom another source and that  25 



MR KAHANOVITZ 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

426 A DEAN 

 

20.01.2010/15:09-17:08/LL / . . .  

is  where the at t r ibut ion needs to be clear.  

 No, but  where I  got  a b i t  confused with the quest ioning,  

there seems to be a dif ference between on the one hand you 

test i f ied that  you must at t r ibute,  but there is another issue, is 

i f  that  is so,  i f  that is good enough why don‟t  a l l  journal ists just 5 

go and copy art ic les of  other newspapers of f  the internet and 

as long as i t  is  att r ibuted is that  in of  i tself  suf f ic ient  or are 

journal ists expected to do something more than merely g o and 

copy other people‟s art ic les of f  the internet?  - --   The reason 

there is not  more of  that  and journal ists are not  just  taking 10 

th ings through and doing the r ight  th ing in terms of  at t r ibut ion, 

but just  reproducing each other‟s work,  is because of  internal 

standards maintained by management who need to safeguard 

the qual i ty of  the product and therefore …(intervent ion)   

 So how do you, excuse, sorry.   You have not f in ished.   15 

---   And therefore edi tor ia l  management would have a 

to lerance level  for an aspect such as drawing other work that 

has already been created into their  product …(intervent ion)   

 What would make …(intervent ion)   - --   And to lerance 

levels would vary.  20 

 What would make something a People‟s Post story 

wri t ten by a People‟s Post journalist  and acceptable to the 

People‟s Post as opposed to something merely copied f rom 

somewhere else and presented as a People‟s Post story?  - - -   I  

am sorry,  I  don‟t  understand clear ly.  25 
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 What made something a People‟s Post story as opposed 

to something copied of f  f rom somebody else‟s website? What 

do you have to do to give i t  that  qual i ty?  ---   Where a 

journal ist  would generate their  own art ic le?  

 Yes.  ---   I t  means that  there has been f i rsthand 5 

ver i f icat ion of  the informat ion and you are not  taking i t  on the 

t rust  of  another source.   You have got someone in your 

employment with a contract  whose job entai ls ver i fy ing and 

who you have a re lat ionship with and if  you have any doubt 

about any of  the informat ion before or af ter publ icat ion you are 10 

able to say to th is  person:  Did you veri fy th is?  I f  you have 

any doubt you are able to ask for a number to ver i fy i t  

yoursel f .  Whereas when you draw something you re ly and you 

are tota l ly dependent on the checks and balances of  an 

external party.  15 

 When you had th is debate with Mr Lewis as to what was 

or was not acceptable d id he say to you that :  these problems 

you are ra is ing with me, th is is not  your real  reason for having 

a problem with th is story? You real  reason is because you are 

a racist?  ---   No, he did not .  20 

 I f  you could look at  page 52 of  which bundle?  This is 

appl icant ‟s bundle of  documents, part  1.   This is a note 

…(intervent ion)   

COURT:  What page, sorry?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Page 52, appl icant ‟s bundle,  part  1.  I t  is  a 25 
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note prepared by Mr Lewis set t ing out  one of  h is versions of  

the events.    

COURT:  Where is th is version?  What …(intervent ion)   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Page. 

COURT:  I  have got page 52.  5 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Bundle,  i t  is  the document starts at  page 

50:  My experience of  d iscr iminat ion at  Media 24.  

COURT:  And what was th is prepared for?  I  do not know –  

what is th is document?  I t  is  prepared by the appl icant?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes,  I  cross-examined him on some of  i t .  I  10 

am not sure why he has prepared i t ,  M‟Lord .   There are var ious 

internet post ings and stor ies that  he has wri t ten as part  of  h is 

campaign to publ ic ise his experiences. In th is part icular note 

prepared by him you wi l l  see page 52, the fourth paragraph 

f rom the top,  he takes up the story of  what happened af ter you 15 

had re jected the Jimmy Dludlu story.   I  am just  going to read 

into the record.   

“So I  rewrote the story and interviewed Robbie Jansen. 

There was no denying the l ink or the community angle.   

Robbie had a specia l  re lat ionship to those l iving in the 20 

Cape Flats and his comment helped to sol id ify an 

otherwise vapid p iece hast i ly put  together f rom music 

industry bumph.”  

 B-U-M-P-H:  

“And promo mater ia l  that  had began to f low into the 25 
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newsroom at an incredib le rate as a result  of  my own 

request for news worthy stor ies.”  

 Is that  what the document says?  ---   Yes,  i t  is .  

 Then if  you could –  I  am just  going to read you something 

on th is quest ion of  the te lephone number and your request,  the 5 

quest ions that  were put to you in relat ion to the request that 

you made for Robbie Jansen‟s te lephone number. In the 

pleadings f i le  at  page 89 –  M‟Lord,  th is is the appl icant ‟s 

response to the respondent ‟s amendment.   Page 89, paragraph 

26, the fourth l ine f rom the top:  10 

“As far as the issue.”  

 Is Your Lordship with me? 

COURT:  Yes, I  am. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:   

“As far as the issue of  Robbie Jansen‟s te lephone 15 

number is concerned appl icant s imply refused to give out 

Mr Jansen‟s te lephone number for the exact  same reason 

his agent refused to give the number.   Mr Jansen has a 

heart condit ion. He is only contactable viable Pastor Gl en 

Robertson.  Appl icant instead gave Dean the pastor ‟s 20 

te lephone number.  Dean was unhappy with th is and 

refused to publ ish.”  

 Might I  ask you, at  the t ime that you asked him for Mr 

Jansen‟s number did he say to you: I  refuse to give you Robbie 

Jansen‟s te lephone number because he has a heart  condit ion?  25 
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 - --   No, he did not.  

 Just  on th is quest ion of  how the issue of  West End came 

up, you wi l l  recal l  that  when I  cross -examined the appl icant I  

asked him where he interviewed Mr Robbie Jansen because 

the art ic le says that  he interviewed him at  West End . I  am just 5 

t rying to  -  speaking f rom his Cape Town home via te lephone.  

There was some debate between you and Mr Lewis now about 

whether he had or had not interviewed him at  West End.  In 

what context  d id that  ar i se?  ---   That was in the context  of  me 

explain ing how West End had come into the Tuesday, 30 May 10 

meet ing as a topic of  conversat ion ,  where Mr Lewis was 

assert ing i t  was because of  a quest ion as to what he does on 

his Fr iday nights and I  was saying that  i t  was because we were 

st i l l  t rying to get to the bottom of  whether or not he had 

interviewed Robbie Jansen and he had cla imed to have done i t  15 

at  West End. There is though a document in which Mr Lewis 

makes reference to the interview at  West End too.  

 Sorry,  there is or is not  a document?  ---   There is.  In my 

one f i le  I  noted the contradict ion between that and the art ic le.  

COURT:  My recol lect ion is that  under cross -examinat ion he 20 

said that he had interviewed Mr Robbie Jansen over the 

te lephone and that  he subsequent ly met with Robbie Jansen 

later.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes,  he said at  West End to pay his 

respects.  25 
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COURT:  To pay his respects, that  is correct .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  But there was a document in which,  where 

the issue had ar isen that –  which he cla imed that  he had 

interviewed at  West End which is where th is whole issue of  

whether he was at West End on Friday night  had ar isen in the 5 

f i rst  p lace.  

MR LEWIS:  Fishing for stuf f  that  does not exist .   - --   There is 

on page 27 of  the appl icant ‟s bundle of  documents on the 

bottom –  and I  wi l l  leave i t  to my advocate to read that  i f  he 

feels i t  appropriate.  10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Page where?  ---   Page 27. 

COURT :   Page 27 of  the appl icant ‟s f i rst  bundle of  documents.  

You do not have to read i t  to the counsel.   Counsel wi l l  b e able 

to read i t  h imself .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes,  th is is  h is note about the problems 15 

encounter with the second product ion ( indist inct -not  speaking 

into microphone). In the bottom paragraph …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Please, mister.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:   20 

“This week I  got  an exclusive interview with Robbie 

Jansen on amongst other th ings Jimmy Dludlu ‟s SAMA 

award,  in i tsel f  no mean feat .   Af ter going through a 

variety of  channels His People‟s Church Pastor Glen I  

eventual ly met with the old saxophoni st  at  the West End 25 
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in  Rylands, one of  our target areas in Athlone.  Despite 

considerable ef fort and my t ime being spent on the story 

la te Fr iday night  this story was re jected out of  hand.”  

COURT:  Let  us just  s i tuate th is.   This is the …(intervent ion)   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  This is the note …(intervent ion)   5 

COURT:  This is the note that he prepared for h is evaluat ion.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  That is so,  M‟Lord .   And i t  is  in that context 

I  cross-examined him and I  said where,  which version is i t  and 

he said:   I  spoke, ac tual ly I  spoke to h im on the te lephone.  

COURT:  Yes. 10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  „And then I  went to pay my respects 

subsequent ly at  West …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Sorry,  M‟Lord ,  I  have got to object ,  because there 

is no contradict ion.   This is a note for evaluat ion  in which I 

h ighl ighted in order to assist  me that  I  was now, there was a 15 

Fr iday night  issue. There is no contradict ion. I  have never 

c la imed that  I  interviewed him on the Fr iday.   I  have always 

cla imed that  the interview was conducted over te lephone and 

the substance of  the …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  I  do not th ink that  is the problem.  20 

MR LEWIS:  What is the problem? 

COURT:  No, wel l  then si t  down and let  Mr Kahanovitz ask his 

quest ions.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Ms Dean, can you recal l  –  and if  you 

cannot recal l  just  say so –  what was the version that  was 25 
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actual ly put  up at  the meet ing when the appl icant was 

chal lenged about whether he had in fact  conducted the 

interview?  How did the concept,  how did the issue of  whether 

he knew where West End, how did i t  ar ise?  ---   I t  was because 

he had ment ioned that  he had met with Robbie Jansen at  West 5 

End and that  is when I  thought back mental ly when had I 

s igned out a pool car for h is use af ter hours to just ,  wi th in my 

own mind, see if  I  could reconci le that  to understand if  s uch an 

interview had taken place and I  had signed out a car on a 

Fr iday night .   So the night  on which the interview would have 10 

taken place was re levant to whether or not  the interview did 

indeed take place, which was the point  of  the discussion,  the 

concern …(intervent ion)  

 What does, yes,  excuse me. I  in terrupted you.  ---   The 

concern around whether or not  an interview had been held was 15 

the point of  the discussion.  

 Yes.   ---   And I  knew that  I  had signed out a pool car for 

h im for af ter hours use for a F r iday night  and in try ing to 

understand when had th is interview apparent ly taken place, the 

matter of  when had that  pool car been used on what night  was 20 

re levant.  

 What do you have to do to get  a pool car?  ---   You need 

to expla in why you need the pool ca r and I  need to then 

approve i t  on the basis that  i t  is necessary for work for the 

newspaper.   You need that  permission.  25 
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 So was i t  your understanding that  the pool car had been 

signed out to conduct an interview wi th Mr Jansen at?  ---   The 

pool car had been signed out for work on a Fr iday night .   As to 

whether i t  was going to be Mr Jansen I  cannot conf i rm without 

that  s l ip on which he had wri t ten what the purpose of  i t  would 5 

have been for,  part icular ly with i t  being that  long ago.  

 Al l  r ight .   Mr Lewis is  ( indist inct) .  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Are you object ing,  Mr Lewis?  

MR LEWIS:  I  bel ieve I  have to.   I t  is ,  i t  is  …(intervent ion)   10 

COURT:  Wel l ,  just  state your object ion.  

MR LEWIS:  My object ion is I  was given use of  the pool car as 

one of  the junkets with f r inge benef i ts.  

COURT:  Mr Lewis …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  And now they are t rying to …(intervent ion)   15 

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  you cannot give evidence f rom the bar.  Do 

you understand that?  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Al l  r ight ,  so the …(intervention)   

MR LEWIS:  So I  can ask Annel ien a quest ion then.  20 

COURT:  No, no,  i t  is  not  about asking quest ions.   You have 

stopped cross-examining her and i t  is  now Mr Kahanovitz‟  

opportuni ty to put quest ions to her.  Are you object ing to the 

l ine of  quest ioning that Mr Kahanovitz is fo l lowing?  

MR LEWIS:  Yes,  I  am. 25 
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COURT:  What is the object ion?  

MR LEWIS:  The object ion is that you are t rying to cast 

aspersions and create some kind of  issue about the car,  the 

vehic le,  that  does not exist .   Now i t  is  something that  escaped 

my mind in the chaos and the turmoi l  and perhaps I  should 5 

have been asking Annel ien to expla in to us.  I  would l ike an 

opportuni ty to ask that  quest ion.  In fact ,  i t  completely escaped 

my mind, so I would love to …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  So what you are real ly want ing to do is not  object,  

but  an opportuni ty to ask further quest ions.  10 

MR LEWIS:  Precisely.  

COURT:  That you fa i led to ask when you were cross -

examining.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  I  wi l l  a l low you to do that once Mr Kahanovitz has 15 

f in ished his quest ioning. 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Thank you, M‟Lord .    

COURT:  Provided of  course you are able to demonstrate to 

me that you are ent i t led to do so.   Mr Kahanovitz?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Ms Dean, yes,  on the Dludlu story,  what 20 

has come out in the cross -examinat ion that  does not appear to 

have been apparent at  the t ime that you read –  sorry,  not  the 

Dludlu story,  the Jansen/Dludlu story –  that  was not apparent 

at the t ime is i f  you go to page 37 and 38 of  respondent ‟s 

bundle of  documents ,  at  page 38, second paragraph from th e 25 
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top where you wi l l  see i t  says:   Dludlu was however in 

Mozambique and unavai lable for comment,  but  he spoke to the 

press via h is record label.   And then there is quotes:    

“To me winning the SA Music Award means a lot .  I t  

means that  my peers,  the music i ndustry and people in 5 

general  are acknowledging that I  am making a 

contr ibut ion to South Af r ican music and cul ture. ”  

 You wi l l  recal l  that  I  asked the appl icant whether he in 

fact  had interviewed Mr Dludlu before he had put that into the 

art ic le and he said no,  he had not, but  that  the author of  the 10 

statement was a Mr Chris Siren who was his manager and he 

said that  doing that ,  putt ing those words into Mr Dludlu ‟s 

mouth,  was an acceptable journal ist ic pract ice.   He cal led i t  a 

journal ist ic conceit .   I  just  want to f ind out  f rom you, is that an 

acceptable journal ist ic pract ice?  ---   I t  would be to quote 15 

someone on behalf  of  another,  but  rather to give that  person‟s 

name and again we are looking a t  the to lerance levels of  

accuracy that  d if ferent  people with in  the industry would have 

in  terms of  the detai l  given.  „He spoke to the press via h is 

record label ‟ ,  would be a stretch.   I t  would have been better to 20 

say:   But h is manager said on his behalf  or Chris Siren,  h is 

manager,  said on his behalf .  

 Were you to ld  at  the t ime that  th is art ic le was presented 

to you that  what appears to me, at least  as a lay person, as 

being the words of  Mr Dludlu ,  were in fact  not  h is words?  ---   25 
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No, that  was not pointed out to me.  

 Is „via h is record label ‟  some sort  of  code for,  journal ist  

code for te l l ing an editor that  that is not  the words of  the 

person?  ---   No, i t  is  not .  

 I  have no further quest ions,  M‟Lord .  5 

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  you said that  you indicated you want to ask 

further quest ions.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  The issue of  the pool car,  I  am going to permit  you to 

ask quest ions in re lat ion to her evidence on the pool car 10 

because i t  was not ra ised under your cross -examinat ion and it  

was not ra ised in chief  e i ther,  so –  her evidence-in-chief  –  so 

you may quest ion in respect  of  the pool car …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  And is i t  possib le to just  cont inue th is l ine of  

d iscussion about the Chris Siren via h is record label?  15 

COURT:  No, I  do not th ink so.  

MR LEWIS:  Not.  

COURT:  You real ly have exhausted that and in any event you 

yoursel f  say –  you have already stated that  the art ic le is f i l led 

with promo bumph, so …(intervent ion)   20 

MR LEWIS:  No, this is the second …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  So the quest ion of  Chris Siren and the rest 

…(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Sorry,  M‟Lord .   The second …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  I  want to hear you –  i f  you want to ask any quest ions25 
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you may ask quest ions in re lat ion to the pool car.  I f  you want 

to ask any other quest ions you wi l l  have to mot ivate for doing 

so and I  am not permit t ing you to do cross -examinat ion in 

respect of  Mr Siren.  

FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR LEWIS:   Al l  r ight .   5 

Ms Dean, is i t  not  common pract ice at  Media 24 to make cars 

avai lable to employees?  ---   Yes,  i t  is .  

 Right .   And would not  such a service be considered some 

kind of  f r inge benef i t  for instance?  ---   I t  would be considered 

a tool  of  the t rade.  10 

 A tool  of  the t rade.  But there would be some kind of  

leeway?  ---   No.  

 Is i t  not  the case that  the reason that  the car was in my 

possession was because I had signed i t  out  with your 

permission?  ---   Indeed. 15 

 Right  and that  the ru les of  the company would seem to 

suggest that  I  would be using the car for the express purposes 

of  conduct ing business for the corporat ion?  ---   Yes.  

 Surely you agree that  there is a problem, a grey ar ea 

where i f  I  make the use of  a company vehicle on a Fr iday night  20 

that  there might be a c lash between the str ict  reading of  the 

contract  in terms of  the work week and the cul tural  t radi t ions 

of  an employee?  ---   Hypothet ical ly indeed, however I  need to 

re i terate that  you had not made your object ions known at  a l l .  

You had approached me for a car on a Fr iday night  to do work. 25 
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You had requested my permission and I  had to grant that 

permission in response to your request to take a car to work 

for People‟s Post  on a Fr iday night .  

 But for instance there might be a problem with insurance 

for instance i f  I  had to have an accident on a Fr iday night .   ---   5 

Or a Monday night .  

 An insurance assessor might for instance decide that  i f  I  

was using the car af ter hours tha t  the car was not insured.  ---   

I  don‟t  work wi th in the industry.  I  don‟t  know where 

…(intervent ion)   10 

 But surely you agree that  there is a sort  of  a 

…(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Where does th is take us, Mr Lewis?  

MR LEWIS:  I  feel  that  i t  sort  of  proves my case, Your Honour.  

COURT:  What does i t  prove? 15 

MR LEWIS:  I t  proves that  there was a discussion about Fr iday 

evening.  I t  proves that  my version of  events are t rue,  that 

there was a problem with the impingement and encroachment 

of  company pol icy and a clash of  cul tures at Media 24,  where 

merely …(intervent ion)   20 

COURT:  Right ,  the quest ion of  insurance.  I  understand the 

inference you are try ing to draw.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  But on insurance? 

MR LEWIS:  Wel l ,  was I  insured or not?  25 
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COURT:  Wel l ,  is  that  re levant …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  The re levance is that  I  could conceive of  we 

would be in a s imi lar conf l ict  and having noted my object ions 

to the insistence on the company on determining and dictat ing 

what I  do on a Fr iday night .   This is essent ia l ly th e basis of  my 5 

discr iminat ion case, that I  am object ing to your seizure of  my 

byl ine and your determining my t ime af ter hours.  Now even i f  I  

might be using a company vehicle,  surely there is a l ine which 

even the corporat ion should not  cross.  Even i f  I  am u sing –  i f  I  

…(intervent ion)   10 

COURT:  What is the quest ion? 

MR LEWIS:  The quest ion is:   Annel ien,  when you go home at 

n ight  is i t  to your pr ivate l i fe or is i t  to a Media 24 sponsored 

world,  a world that  is endorsed by Media 24,  contro l led by 

Media 24? 15 

COURT:  I  must –  real ly,  I  have asked you, I  have to ld you that 

you can discuss the issue of  the pool cars.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  I  th ink you have exhausted the issue of  insurance.  

Are there any other quest ions in re lat ion to the pool car and i ts 20 

re lat ionship to your case? 

MR LEWIS:  Ms Dean, d id you or d id you not quest ion me 

about my whereabouts on Fr iday night ,  on that  Fr iday night  in 

quest ion?  ---   In the Tuesday meet ing i t  came up.  

COURT:  Which Tuesday meet ing?  Are we ta lk ing about the 25 



MR LEWIS 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

441 A DEAN 

 

20.01.2010/15:09-17:08/LL / . . .  

Tuesday af ter the event?  ---   I t  was the Tuesday, 30 May, 

af ter the event.   In s igning the car Mr Lewis said that  he was 

going to do work.  I t  would not  have been unusual for h im to 

say he was going to West End and Rylands because he had 

been for some t ime enthusiast ical ly ta lk ing about the 5 

enterta inment and cul ture content that  he would br ing to 

People‟s Post and in approaching me with a permission sl ip for 

a car on Fr iday night  to work at  West End in Rylands i t  was a 

deduct ion to make that  i t  would be for work.   Rob bie Jansen 

would not  have been wri t ten on that  s l ip necessari ly.  I t  d id 10 

form a part  of  the meet ing on the Tuesday, 30 May, in t rying to 

determine if  indeed Robbie Jansen had been interviewed by Mr 

Lewis as he cla imed he had in present ing the art ic le and th at 

is why the West End in Rylands was brought into the 

conversat ion and ta lked about,  because I  had recal led giving 15 

Mr Lewis a pool car for that  Fr iday night .  

MR LEWIS:  So you had no object ion to me using the vehic le? 

 ---   No, I  s igned the use of  the veh ic le …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Wel l ,  qui te obviously she did not  i f  she gave you 

permission,  Mr Lewis.  20 

MR LEWIS:  Right.   So quest ioning me about my whereabouts 

on a Fr iday night  might be construed as discr iminat ion.   ---   On 

the quest ioning you about d id the interview with Robbie 

Jansen takes place at  West End in Rylands was important  to 

us ver i fying that  you had indeed interviewed him.  There was 25 
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not  another basis for the quest ioning.  

 Even though I  had already given you a fa ir  sort  of  –  a 

chance of  substant iat ing the veraci ty of  the cla im and I  had 

given you Pastor Glen Robertson‟s number, you did not  check, 

you went and terminated my employment whi le quest ioning my 5 

cul tural  ident i ty.   Why did you do that?  ---   Which quest ion, 

sorry …(intervent ion)   

 Why did you ra ise …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Mister,  I  have said to you, you are al lowed to pursue 

quest ions in re lat ion to the pool car.  10 

MR LEWIS:  Right .  

COURT:  Now are there any other quest ions on the pool car?  

MR LEWIS:  Hm. (Long pause).  

COURT:  I t  is  c lear to me that  there are no other questions on 

the pool car.  Now are there any other quest ions that  you feel 15 

that  have been ra ised anew in her,  in her …(intervent ion)   

MR LEWIS:  Yes. 

COURT:  And what are they?  

MR LEWIS:  And i t  is  –  unfortunately i t  is  th is  issue of  the,  the 

so-cal led words of  Chris Siren or so -cal led words of  J immy 20 

Dludlu.  

COURT:  Right ,  the reason why I  am not going to a l low you to 

ra ise those questions,  because i t  appears to me common 

cause that  you yoursel f  have said that  p iece is vapid  and that 

i t  is  …(intervent ion)   25 
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MR LEWIS:  Excuse me, with a l l  due respect,  I  hold that 

opin ion of  the f i rst …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Yes, okay.  

MR LEWIS:  Piece.  The second piece in which the words of  

Chris Siren appear I  stand wholeheartedly and one hun dred 5 

percent behind the story.  

COURT:  Okay, a l l  r ight ,  okay.  So what you are saying is that 

the second piece refers to Chris Siren.  

MR LEWIS:  Yes and i t  is  not uncommon for record producers 

to produce press re leases in which they quote he said,  she 10 

said. 

COURT:  Okay, I  am going to permit  you to –  I  real ise now I  

was th inking of  the f i rst  art ic le, so on the second art ic le,  ask 

quest ions in re lat ion to Chris Siren.  

MR LEWIS:  Right .   Ms Dean, is i t  not  t rue that  i t  is  just  a 15 

f igure of  speech to say speaking through one‟s record 

producer?  That is just  a f igurat ive term that  would be used in 

a newsroom.  ---   Yes.  

 Right ,  thank you.  Because you have …(intervent ion)   

COURT:  Yes, she has answered yes.  20 

MR LEWIS:  Right , wel l  thank you very much, Ms Dean.  

COURT:  Are there any other quest ions you want to put to her?  

MR LEWIS:  I  do not need to ask anymore quest ions because 

you have just  answered the quest ion that  I  ser iously needed. 

Thank you very much.25 
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MR KAHANOVITZ:  M‟Lord ,  that is our case, unless Your 

Lordship has any quest ions? 

COURT:  Ms Dean, I  wonder i f  you could just assist  me?  You 

said at  one stage that  there were four edi t ions that  you were 

producing of  the People‟s Post.   So are you the edi tor of  four 5 

separate edi t ions of  the …(intervention)   - --   I f  you wi l l  a l low,  

M‟Lord ,  I  wi l l  expla in i t?  

 Please, ja.   ---   In 2004 Media 24 bought the False Bay 

edit ion which had been establ ished in 1994 by …(intervent ion)   

 Yes,  I  know, I  have got that,  I  understand that .  ---   Al l  10 

r ight  and then in 2006 Media 24 added four new edit ions to the 

brand. 

 So now an edit ion here means a newspaper?  ---   Yes,  a 

separate stand alone …(intervent ion)   

 Or a community –  so under People‟s Post you would have 15 

four d if ferent  newspapers for four d if ferent areas?  ---   Yes,  in 

May 2006. 

 Added four new edit ions i .e.  …(intervent ion)   - --   For the 

specif ic communit ies.  

 For –  and so i t  is  not  the same paper?  ---   No, i t  is  not 20 

the same. 

 Cal led the same, but  i t  …(intervent ion)   - --   Yes,  i t  would 

be …(intervent ion)   

 But i t  is  ta rget ing each of  the areas?  ---   Yes,  that is 

correct ,  M‟Lord .  25 
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 And would they have dif ferent  publ icat ion dates and 

would they al l  come out on Tuesday or would they be 

separate?  ---   They al l  came out on Tuesday and were cal led 

People‟s Post in large type  and subscript  Grassy Park,  False 

Bay.  At  the end of  2006 and a subsequent launch there were 5 

nine in tota l  and …(intervent ion)   

 So when you say there was –  so there was nine in tota l  in 

2009?  Hm, 2000 and?  ---   2006, at  the end and at present 

there are ten. 

 And earl ier you said that False Bay, in answer to a 10 

quest ion f rom Mr Lewis you said False Bay, the demographics 

of  False Bay are di f ferent  f rom the demographics of  Retreat?   

---   Ja, I  made that  point in i l lustrat ing that  i t  is ,  you don‟t  

publ ish to racia l ly and cul tural ly homogenic communit ies. 

There is a heterogeneous mix in False Bay for instance, b lack, 15 

white,  coloured and that  is s imi lar to other edi t ions of  People‟s 

Post.  

 And you are responsib le for a l l  of  those?  ---   Yes,  I  am, 

M‟Lord .   

 And then which was the edi t ion that  was produced for the 20 

f i rst  t ime on 23 May?  ---   The four edi t ions that  were launched 

simultaneously were for the communit ies of  Retreat.  

 Retreat .   ---   Grassy Park,  Lansdowne and Athlone.  

 And these were al l  separate?  ---   Al l  separate and they 

were launched because col lect ively they form one part  of  the 25 
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peninsula geographical ly and the subsequent launch in the 

lat ter part  of  2006 was for another region of  the peninsula.  

 Now before the launch on 23 May what edi t ions of  the 

People‟s Post were there?  - --   There was only the False Bay 

edit ion.  5 

 And throughout the t ime of  these events,  the three 

months that  the appl icant was, Mr Lewis,  was work ing,  you 

were producing a False Bay edit ion each week, is that r ight?   

---   That is correct,  M‟Lord .  

 You said that  he went for t ra in ing,  the appl icant went for 10 

t ra in ing.   He states that  he went for t ra in ing.   I  am not 

interested in the content of  that ,  I  just  want to know the t iming 

of  i t .   How long was the t ra in ing for?  ---   I t  would have been 

f rom the date of  h is appointment at  the beginning of  Apri l  to –  

i t  was over a two week cycle,  so ja,  two weeks.  15 

 So ef fect ively in the middle of  Apri l  he would have then 

jo ined People‟s Post and …(intervention)   - --   No, M‟Lord ,  I  wi l l  

correct  you on that .   Af ter t ra in ing we st i l l  needed to get  our 

of f ices ready. We only moved into our of f ices on 9 May. In the 

period between the new recrui ts were posted to Bel lv i l le ,  the 20 

Bel lvi l le  of f ice of  WP Newspapers and were there assist ing 

with content and other tasks with WP Newspapers‟  exist ing 

t i t les,  pr ior to the ro l lout  of  People‟s Post.  

 You said WP?  ---   WP Newspapers.  

 What is WP Newspapers?  What does WP stand for?  ---   25 
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Probably Western Province, a l though our former publ isher d id 

not  ever real ly  want i t  to become the de facto name for that.  

 Al l  r ight .   And then i t  is  f rom 9 May that  the appl icant, Mr 

Lewis,  starts work ing at  the People‟s Post?  - --   At People‟s 

Post ‟s of f ice in Tokai.  5 

 In Tokai.   ---   That is when we al l  set  of f  on the work on 

the People‟s Post, the ro l lout .  

 Mr Lewis,  any quest ions ar is ing f rom my quest ioning?  

MR LEWIS:  I  bel ieve you are one hundred percent on the 

mark.  I  have no object ions to any of  the.  10 

FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR LEWIS:    

COURT:  Mr Kahanovitz?  

FURTHER RE-EXAMINATION BY MR KAHANOVITZ:   No 

quest ions.  

COURT:  Ms Dean, you are re leased.  ---   Thank you, M‟Lord .  15 

NO FURTHER QUESTIONS 

CASE FOR RESPONDENT 

COURT:  We si t  tomorrow for argument?  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes,  M‟Lord .  

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  the respondent has cl osed i ts case and 20 

that  means that  10:00 tomorrow sharp you wi l l  begin argument 

as to –  on the evidence that  you led and the evidence that  Ms 

Dean led and the law.  And then what happens is that  Mr 

Kahanovitz repl ies and then you have an opportuni ty to 

respond to anything new that  he ra ises that  you yoursel f  have25 
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not  ra ised and you do that by way of  argument and I suggest 

that  you take the opportuni ty now to prepare for tomorrow.  

COURT ADJOURNS AT 17:08 UNTIL 21 JANUARY 2010  


